
CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
Small Courtroom, Courthouse 

July 18, 2024   9:30 a.m. 
***PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES*** 

Call to Order  
Pledge of Allegiance  
Roll Call  
Public Comments  

Consent Agenda   
1. Approval of the June 20th Meeting & June 27th Special Board Meeting 

Minutes  
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation  
3. Approval of Committee on Claims 

  
Tabled Items  

Department Reports  
Animal Control  
Assessor  

  Circuit Clerk  
 County Clerk & Recorder    

Emergency Management  
GIS  
Highway  
  1. Monthly Report 
 Health Department  
Probation  
Sheriff  

  States Attorney  
   Transit 
  1. Monthly Report  

Treasurer  
Zoning  
Zoning Board of Appeals  

Affiliate Reports  
  Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – Mrs. Bickelhaupt  
                           1. Monthly Report 
  Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – Mr. Flikkema      

Community Mental Health Board – Mrs. Bickelhaupt  
Emergency Telephone System Board – Mr. Rieck  
Health Board – Mr. Iske  

 Hotel/Motel – Ms. Jacobs    



Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone – Mr. Payette 
Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency – Mr. Flikkema 
LRA – Ms. Jacobs  
NWILED – Ms. Jacobs  
Senior Services Board – Mr. Soldat  
Tri-County Opportunities Council – Mr.  Preston 

1. Monthly Report
United County Council of Illinois – Mr. Payette  
 Veterans Assistance Commission – Ms. Jacobs  
Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone - Mr. Payette 

Committee Reports 
Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee – Mr. Iske  

Old Business 
1. Approval of Chapter 20 County Board Procedure .

New Business 
1. Approval of WIPFLI revised 2024-2026 Audit Services Fees.
2. Approval of Raffle License – Timber Lake Playhouse.
3. Approval of the Intergovernmental Detention Agreement with Kane County.
4. Approval of Circuit Clerk’s Semi-Annual Report.
5. Approval of the Joint Funding Agreement for Federally Funded Construction 
IDOT form for Section Number 20-00102-00-PV Ideal Road.
6. Approval of the adjusted Matching Fund Resolution for Section Number 
20-00102-00-PV Ideal Road in the amount of $600,000.
7. Approval for the county board chairman to sign a letter of support for the 
maintenance of the Army Depot Bridge Repair over the Apple Creek, to be 
submitted with the RISE Grant application.
8. Approval of the Public Agency Formal Contract with Law Excavating Inc. for 
Section Number 22-13707-00-BR Loran Road Culvert Replacement Project.
9. Approval of Chapter 745 Guest Home License.

10. Discussion of New Floodplain Ordinance.
11. Approval of Fire Alarm Inspection and Maintenance Agreement.
12. Discussion and Approval of two vehicle purchases by the Sheriff’s 

Department for $52,500 and $81,000 from Fund 84.

Executive Session - Pending Litigation under Section 2(c)(11) 

Chairman Report  

  Appointments   
1. Appointment of Democrat to Upper Mississippi International Port Authority
for a 3 year term thru May 2027 – Ken Sandy (Democrat)

Adjournment  
Next County Board Meeting – August 1, 2024 9:30 a.m. 



CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

301 N. MAIN ST., MT. CARROLL, IL IN SMALL COURTROOM 

JUNE 20, 2024 AT 9:30 A.M. 

    

Chair Payette called the Board meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.  

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Mr. Preston, Mr. Flikkema, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Rieck, Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
and Mr. Soldat present.  Mr. Vandermyde and Mr. Iske were absent.  

Public Comments-JoAnn Palmer, Woodland Resident and a Carroll County Election Judge, spoke 
in favor of moving the Woodland polling precinct out of the Woodland Township building to the 
Naaman Diehl Auditorium at the Farm Bureau in Mt. Carroll.   

Dawn Rath, Woodland Resident and Woodland Township Supervisor, spoke against moving the 
Woodland polling precinct out of the Woodland Township building to the Naaman Diehl 
Auditorium at the Farm Bureau in Mt. Carroll. 

Chair Payette thanked both ladies for their time in speaking to the Board.  

Chair Payette presented the consent agenda for approval.  
1. Approval of the June 6, 2024 Board Meeting minutes 
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation 
3. Approval of Committee on Claims 
4. Approval of Board Member Services 

 
Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Preston to approve the consent agenda. Roll call vote 
shows Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Soldat, Mrs. Bickelhaupt and Ms. 
Jacobs all voting aye.  Motion carried.  
 
Tabled Items-None  

 
Animal Control- Animal Control Officer Lisa Ashby included in the Board packet the 2023-2024 
Pound Improvements report.  She explained the pictures of the improvements that were 
included in her report.   

She updated the Board that currently six dogs are at the Animal Control Facility. She was 
pleased to announce last week she was able to get four dogs adopted.  

Assessor- Chief County Assessor Annette updated the Board that her office is very busy and has 
been working overtime to get their work completed. 



She reported that Deputy Assessor Koltin Dimmick will attend a training class in Rockford next 
week.  

Circuit Clerk- Circuit Clerk Patty Hiher reported the scanning of her records are done. She has a 
credit and will be using the credit to get more records scanned.  

County Clerk- County Clerk Amy Buss submitted for review the 2023 Yearly Raffle Summary 
Report.  Consensus of the Board was to accept and place on file.  

Chair Payette informed the Board that four of the organizations that were approved for a raffle 
license last year have not filed the report required to show gross receipts, expenses, and net 
proceeds within 30 days of the raffle.   

Emergency Management- Emergency Management Director Jim Klinefelter was not present. 

GIS- Deputy Assessor Dimmick was present advised no report. 

Highway – A monthly report was submitted and County Engineer Sara Renkes discussed her 
monthly report.  

She asked for a correction to be made on the third paragraph under the title Ideal Road Update. 
She would like it to read $38,850 not $44,970.  

Health Department – Dawn Holland was not present.    

Probation- Chief Probation Managing Office Marcie Arno updated the Board that the Probation 
Department currently has 300 adults on probation.   

Sheriff & Property- Sheriff Ryan Kloepping informed the Board a squad car was damaged in the 
storm earlier this week.  With all the damage, it will be a total loss and he has started that 
insurance claim.  

State’s Attorney – State’s Attorney Aaron Kaney reported to the Board that he is currently 
conducting interviews for his VOCA advocate and hopes to have someone hired soon.  

Transit – PCOM Mary Maszk was present advised no report.  

Treasurer – County Treasurer Lydia Hutchcraft reported that about $8,000,000 has been 
collected for tax payments. She thanked the Board for letting her hire a third deputy.  It has 
helped being able to post the tax payments quicker.  

Zoning – Zoning Officer Jaicee Buckner reported to the Board she has a meeting this afternoon 
with a representative from the State in regards to Flood Plains recommendations.  

Zoning Board of Appeals – Zoning Officer Buckner was present advised no report.  

 

 



Affiliate Reports 

Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – No report. 

Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – No report.    

Community Mental Health Board – No report. 

Emergency Telephone System Board - No report. 

Health Board – No report. 

Hotel/Motel – A monthly report was submitted.  

Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone - No report. 

Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency – No report.  

LRA- No report.  

NWILED- No report. 

Senior Services Board - No report 

Tri-County Opportunities Council – No report  

United County Council of Illinois- No report  

Veterans Assistance Commission – No report 

Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone – No report  

Committee Reports 

Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee- Mr. Iske was not presented.  Sheriff Kloepping was 
present advised no report.  

Highway/EOC Building Renovation- Mr. Flikkema reported that newly repaired window trim  
has been installed.  County Administrator Jachnicki confirmed windows were tested for leakage 
and no leakage was reported.  

Ad Hoc Transit Garage Committee- Mr. Flikkema reported that the architect reevaluated his 
bid. The paperwork has been sent to IDOT for approval. Once approved by IDOT, it will be 
brought before the Board for pending approval.  

Old Business- None  

New Business- County Clerk Buss presented for Approval of County Clerk and Recorder’s Semi-
Annual Report.  Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Ms. Jacobs to approve.  Motion carried. 



Sheriff Kloepping presented for Approval of County Sheriff’s Semi-Annual Report.  Motion by 
Mrs. Bickelhaupt, second by Mr. Flikkema to approve.  Motion carried.  

Chair Payette presented for discussion and possible approval of Resolution amending Chapter 
745-Guest Home License.  He deferred to Zoning Officer Buckner to explain changes made in 
this chapter. No action was taken.  

It was consensus of the Board to have Zoning Officer Buckner at the July 18th Board meeting to 
have how many guest homes are within the municipalities and county to see how to proceed. 

Chair Payette presented for Discussion/Guidance Regarding Hotel-Motel Tax. He asked 
Treasurer Hutchcraft to explain the situation with the Hotel-Motel Tax in regards to Illinois 
Municipal Code section 8-13-14.  Since 2017, the City of Mt. Carroll and Carroll County have 
both been collecting hotel-motel tax from several operators in Mt. Carroll.  She asked for 
guidance on how to proceed in the future - do we reimburse the monies back and if so to 
whom.  After much discussion, it was the consensus that State’s Attorney Kaney will get an 
opinion from the Attorney General but to continue not collecting taxes from those operators in 
Mt. Carroll.  

Sheriff Kloepping presented for Approval of West Carroll SRO Intergovernmental Agreement.  
He explained this is a three-year agreement with side letter updated every year.  Motion by Ms. 
Jacobs, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt to approve this agreement.  Discussion.  Roll call shows Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Flikkema, and Mr. Soldat to 
approve.  Motion carried. 

County Administrator presented for Approval of Resolution for FY 2025-2029 Capital 
Improvement Plan.  He explained this is a requirement to participate in Blackhawk Hills 
Regional Council Northwest Illinois Capital Improvement Planning Program.  Motion by Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt, second by Mr. Soldat to approve.  Roll call shows Mr. Flikkema, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. 
Soldat, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Payette, Mrs. Bickelhaupt and Mr. Preston all voting aye.  Motion carried.  

Chair Payette presented for Approval of Resolution authorizing execution of the Illinois Public 
Works Mutual Aid. Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Soldat to approve resolution with the 
correction for it to read under Section One “The County Chair” not the “The County Engineer.”  
Roll call shows Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Soldat, Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
and Ms. Jacobs all voting aye.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of contract with Willett Hoffman and Associates for the 
design of Section 22-02119-00-BR Fremont Road Bridge over Elkhorn Creek.  County Engineer 
Renkes explained the total cost is $87,477.00. 2% is $1,669.54 which will be the County’s 
portion to pay. Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt to approve the Chair to sign 
the contract.  Roll call shows Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Ms. Jacobs, Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt, Mr. Soldat, and Mr. Rieck all voting aye.  Motion carried. 



Chair Payette presented for discussion and possible approval of moving Woodland Township 
Polling Place Location to Naaman Diehl Auditorium at the Farm Bureau in Mt. Carroll, IL.  
County Clerk Buss explained due to lack of running water and restroom facilities it is hard to 
find Election Judges to work at the current location. Section (10 ILCS 5/11-2) (from Ch. 46, par. 
11-2) states that it is the responsibility of the County Board to establish polling places. 
Discussion. Chair Payette asked for Approval of the polling location for Woodland Township be 
moved to Naaman Diehl Auditorium for the November 2024 Election and all future elections, 
with the possibility of this being revisited in the future. Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Mr. 
Soldat to approve. Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Preston, Mr. Soldat, and 
Mr. Flikkema voting aye. Mr. Rieck and Ms. Jacobs voting nay.  Motion carried.  

Chair Payette presented for Approval of Raffle License for Lake Carroll Ladies Golf League.  
Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Mr. Flikkema to approve raffle.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for discussion of Amended Chapter 20 County Board Procedures.  He 
went over the changes on verbiage and verbiage that has been struck. County Administrator 
Jachnicki explained 20-8 Quorum that will allow a member to attend a meeting by video and 
audio conference pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/7.  The consensus of 
the Board was to make this available for County Board Meetings and Committee Meetings.  
This will be presented at the next Board meeting for possible approval.  

Chair Payette asked for Approval to disband the Ad Hoc PCOM Hire Committee, Ad Hoc County 
Administrator Hire Committee and Ad Hoc Highway/EOC Remodel Appointment.  Motion by 
Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Flikkema to approve to disband those Ad Hoc Committees.  Motion 
carried.  

Executive Session-None 

Chairman Report -No report  

Appointments-  

Chair Payette presented for Reappointment of Chief County Assessment Officer Annette Gruhn 
with her term being until June of 2028.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Flikkema to 
approve this reappointment.  Roll call shows Mr. Soldat, Mr. Rieck, Ms. Jacobs, Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt, Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, and Mr. Flikkema all voting aye.  Motion carried.  

Chair Payette congratulated SOA Gruhn and to keep up the good work.  

Chair Payette presented for Reappointment of Jane Law and Jenny Bergman to the Carroll 
County Health Department Board for 3-year terms through June 2027.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, 
second by Mr. Soldat to approve.  Motion carried.  

County Board Member and Community Mental Health Board member Julie Bickelhaupt 
explained with Joann Palmer retired from the Board, she is making the motion for Beth 



Wilkinson to be appointed for the remainder of the term that runs through January of 2028.  
The motion was seconded by Ms. Jacobs.  Motion carried.  

Chair Payette will be placing on hold the appointment to fill a position for a new member 
position for the Community Mental Health Board at this time. 

Chair Payette informed the Board that at the next Board meeting (scheduled for July 18th due to 
the July 4th holiday), the Board will have for possible Approval a Purchase of Service Contract 
between Carroll County and Carroll County Senior Services Organization for State Fiscal Year 
July 1,2024 through June 30,2025.  The contract was not received on time to get it on this 
agenda. 

Motion by Mr. Flikkema, second by Ms. Jacobs to adjourn at 11:16 a.m.  Motion carried.  

Submitted by Amy R. Buss, County Clerk and Recorder 

 



                Carroll County Special Board Meeting 

           301 N. Main St, Mt. Carroll, Il in Small Courtroom 

             June 27, 2024 @9 a.m. 

 

Chair Payette called the meeting to order at 9 a.m.  

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Mr. Preston, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Rieck, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Iske and Mr. Soldat 
present.  Mr. Vandermyde and Mr. Flikkema were absent.  

Public Comments-None 

Old Business  

Chair Payette presented for Discussion and Approval of annual Contract with Carroll County Senior Servies 
regarding public transportation.  Chair Payette advised the Board that the proposed FY25 contract with the 
Carroll County Senior Services (CCSS) would now be an annual contract, reviewed by IDOT once accepted by 
both the Board and CCSS. The current contract, updated in December of 2023 with mandated language 
updates, expires the end of June, 2024. The proposed contract, and each following, will follow the State's fiscal 
year and begin July 2024. The CCSS approved and signed the proposed contract June 18th. 

PCOM Mary Maszk advised the CCSS would receive $513,053 from the transportation grants (Section 5311 
and DOAP) as the 'third party operator' to be spent on County transportation. This amount would probably 
change from year to year in future contracts, explaining in part, why a new contract is required annually.  The 
Chair and Administrator Robert Jachnicki explained that the language of the new contract changed in format 
noting that it may change again, in the future, as both parties learn their responsibilities and the State's 
review. Some changes include: 

• Contract not automatically renewed, 
• Grant dollar amount stated, 
• The Board delegating responsibility to CCSS of raise additional local matching funds as needed with 

PCOM assistance,  
• The Board approves the transportation design and scheduling, and 
• How reimbursements and reporting by CCSS and PCOM shall occur. 

Following additional discussion, the Chair asked for a motion to approve.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by 
Mr. Preston to approve this Annual contract with Carroll County Senior Services.  Roll call vote shows Mr. 
Rieck, Mr. Payette, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Flikkema, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Preston, Mr. Soldat and Mr. Iske all voting 
aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Mrs. Bickelhaupt, second by Ms. Jacobs to adjourn at 9:21 a.m. Motion carried. 

 

Submitted by Amy R. Buss, Carroll County Clerk  



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  
Bank = 

Batch = DAWN
Due Date = 
Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 029 VITAL RESOLUSION

6.28.24 6/28/2024 CO CLERK / SCANNING
$126.00DAWN BUSS 02900005441 ARCHIVING 640877

$126.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 029 : $126.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 6/28/2024 12:52:51 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)

Bills Paid in Vacation



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  
Bank =  

Batch = 
Due Date = 7/5/2024
Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

01 COURTHOUSE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

86673320007_8.12.24 7/5/2024 COURTHOUSE
$140.06NICOR GAS 01101005006 UTILITIES--GAS1800

8614589 7/5/2024 COURTHOUSE
$114.34PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL INC. 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE3413

0721-008058812 7/5/2024 SHERIFF
$184.24REPUBLIC SERVICES 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640762

SN023071 7/5/2024 COURTHOUSE
$337.48SYNDEO NETWORKS, INC. 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE640697

$776.12Subtotal for Department: 01 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 1 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

03 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

82787814 7/5/2024 CO CLERK
$462.83DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN640560

INV611600 7/5/2024 CICRUIT CLERK
$161.80STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN4192

INV611623 7/5/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK
$29.70STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN4192

$654.33Subtotal for Department: 03 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 2 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

05 SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

6.14.24 7/5/2024 FARMLAND ADVISORY COMM MEETING
$56.70Jeremy Flikkema 01105005018 FARMLAND ADVISORY COM1688

6.14.24 7/5/2024 FARMLAND ADVISORY COMM MEETING
$60.72Jon Lower 01105005018 FARMLAND ADVISORY COM2679

6.14.24 7/5/2024 FARMLAND ADVISORY COMM MEETING
$66.75JUDY DAMPMAN 01105005018 FARMLAND ADVISORY COM1276

6.28.24 7/5/2024 IPAI COURSE
$253.34KOLTIN DIMMICK 01105005012 TRAVEL640129

5.31.24 ASSESSOR 7/5/2024 ASSESSOR
$160.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01105005323 PRINTING SUPPLIES & OTHERS2960

3106695922 7/5/2024 ASSESSOR
$169.29PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERV 01105005323 PRINTING SUPPLIES & OTHERS640586

$766.80Subtotal for Department: 05 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 3 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

08 BONDS - COUNTY OFFICERSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

3901 7/5/2024 GURHN OFFICE BOND
$170.00MT. CARROLL INSURANCE AGENCY 01108005328 BONDS FOR COUNTY OFFICERS2250

$170.00Subtotal for Department: 08 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 4 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

17 ZONINGDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2024 DUES 7/5/2024 ZONING
$50.00IACZO 01117005010 DUES-ZONING640597

$50.00Subtotal for Department: 17 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 5 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

19 DOG CATCHERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

7.5.24 7/5/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / SPRAY SYSTEM
$50.00LISA ASHBY 01119005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES157

$50.00Subtotal for Department: 19 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 6 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

20 COUNTY SHERRIFFDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

1-132861 7/5/2024 SHERIFF
$1,128.81BUSHMAN'S SERVICE 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE620

23056883-PX_6.7.24 7/5/2024 INMATE
$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

23056882-PX_6.7.24 7/5/2024 INMATE
$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

23056881-PX_6.7.24 7/5/2024 INMATE
$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

028166225 7/5/2024 SHERIFF
$219.35GALLS LLC 01120006087 PRISONER GENERAL CARE1771

028206275 7/5/2024 SHERIFF
$12.89GALLS LLC 01120006046 UNIFORMS1771

42352 7/5/2024 SHERIFF
$871.96KUNES' COUNTRY AUTO GROUP INC 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE2491

16681278 7/5/2024 SHERIFF
$214.79LEAF 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES2614

39088839 7/5/2024 SHERIFF
$234.17QUILL CORPORATION 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3540

$2,831.97Subtotal for Department: 20 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 7 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

24 PUBLIC DEFENDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2024JA6_6.28.24 7/5/2024 ATTY FEES
$75.00DAVID WEISSMILLER 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY640170

6.25.24 7/5/2024 ATTY FEES
$2,030.00EDWARD J. MITCHELL 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY2970

$2,105.00Subtotal for Department: 24 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 8 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

25 PROBATIONDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

7.2.24 7/5/2024 PROBATION
$6,500.00OGLE COUNTY TREASURER 01125007099 JUVENILE DETENTION            640893

$6,500.00Subtotal for Department: 25 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 9 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

26 STATES ATTORNEYDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

5.31.24_STATTY 7/5/2024 STATES ATTY / 01578255-001
$150.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01126005341 OTHER EXPENDITURES            2960

$150.00Subtotal for Department: 26 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 10 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

27 CIRCUIT CLERKDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

REIMBURSE 7.5.24 7/5/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK / TRAINING
$44.77PATRICIA HIHER 01127005012 TRAVEL640133

$44.77Subtotal for Department: 27 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 11 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

28 COURT EXPENSES - JUDGESDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

14083 7/5/2024 BRINKMEIER / MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL
$225.00ILLINOIS JUDGE ASSOC. 01128005425 DUES--ASSOCIATE JUDGE2194

$225.00Subtotal for Department: 28 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 12 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

29 COUNTY EDUCATION SVCS REGIODept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

GENFUND_JUNE24 7/5/2024 GENERAL FUND
$1,974.64REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01129007102 SHARED COSTS - JO DAVIES & S690

OFFICERENT_JUNE24 7/5/2024 OFFICE RENT
$240.58REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION # 8 01129007103 SHARED RENT - JO DAVIES & ST691

$2,215.22Subtotal for Department: 29 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 13 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

30 COUNTY ADMINISTRATORDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2024 DUES 7/5/2024 ROBERT JACHNICKI
$153.75ILLINOIS CITY/COUNTY MANAGEMENT 01130005010 DUES2161

$153.75Subtotal for Department: 30 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 14 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

39 HLTH INS ADMIN & SELF INS COSTDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

JULY 2024 7/5/2024 JULY ADMIN FEES
$240.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01139006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

$240.00Subtotal for Department: 39 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $16,932.96

Page 15 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 014 COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

CLAIM 4374-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / TIRE REPAIRS
$192.25BUSHMAN'S SERVICE 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN620

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / PARTS
$1,231.65E.D. ETNYRE & CO. 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN1530

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / SHOP SUPPLIES
$223.48EASTLAND FABRICATION,LLC 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE1403

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / MEMBERSHIP
$125.00IL PUBLIC WORKS MUTUAL AID NETWORK 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG640892

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / TIRES AND ALIGNMENT
$1,045.77KUNES' COUNTRY AUTO GROUP INC 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN2491

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / EQUIPMENT RENTAL
$1,290.00MANCHESTER TOWNSHIP ROAD DISTRICT 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG640886

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / SPRING CLAMP
$11.19NORTHERN ILLINOIS DIESEL 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN3220

JULY 2024 7/5/2024 JULY ADMIN FEES
$40.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 01400006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / SUPPLIES
$2.50R.P. LUMBER 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE640874

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / GARBAGE
$70.64REPUBLIC SERVICES 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE640762

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / PARTS
$305.96SADLER POWER TRAIN INC. 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN3787

CLAIM 4375-C 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / CHIP SPREADER
$750.00SCHWARTZ CUSTOM FARMING & TRUCKING 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG640535

Page 16 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

$5,288.44Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 014 : $5,288.44

Page 17 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 015 TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL T
AX

7856-MT 7/5/2024 CALCIUM CHLORIDE
$35,239.35GASAWAY DISTRIBUTORS INC 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS640050

7857-MT 7/5/2024 CA-10
$22.10SAVANNA QUARRY 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS3806

7858-MT 7/5/2024 CA-10
$6,744.42WENDLING QUARRIES, INC. 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS4791

$42,005.87Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 015 : $42,005.87

Page 18 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 016 COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TA
X

2643-M 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / BIT MAT HFRS-2
$43,377.18ASPHALT SALES COMPANY 01600005117 MAINTENANCE640779

2643-M 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / SC AGGREGATE
$8,274.24HDI QUARRY LLC 01600005117 MAINTENANCE1968

2643-M 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / CA-10
$2,010.20HELM MATERIALS 01600005117 MAINTENANCE640145

$53,661.62Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 016 : $53,661.62

Page 19 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 018 COUNTY MATCHING FUND

MAT 526 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / EASEMENT
$2,150.00DORETTA J NEWENDYKE TRUST 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED640891

MAT 525 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / EASEMENT
$3,200.00EDWIN A. LIVENGOOD 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED640889

MAT 524 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / EASEMENT
$900.00WAYNE GEORGE JOHNSON 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED640888

$6,250.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 018 : $6,250.00

Page 20 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 019 FICA OR SOCIAL SECURIT
Y FUND

SSLEVY_JUNE24 7/5/2024 SS LEVY
$133.04REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01900005131 SUPERINTENDENT SHARE TRUS690

$133.04Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 019 : $133.04

Page 21 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 020 IMRF FUND

IMRFLEVY_JUNE24 7/5/2024 IMRF LEVY
$149.67REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION 02000005129 SUPERINTENDENT SHARE TRUS690

$149.67Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 020 : $149.67

Page 22 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 023 COUNTY RECORDER FEES

0899445-IN 7/5/2024 BASTION-AVID HOSTING JULY-SEPT 2024
$150.00FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02300005445 BASTION SYSTEM CLOUD BACK-1660

0236642-IN 7/5/2024 LAREDO MAY 2024
$925.36FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02300005181 ONLINE EXPENSES1660

$1,075.36Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 023 : $1,075.36

Page 23 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 029 VITAL RESOLUSION

0899445-IN 7/5/2024 BASTION-AVID HOSTING JULY-SEPT 2024
$2,500.00FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02900005445 BASTION SYSTEM CLOUD BACK-1660

$2,500.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 029 : $2,500.00

Page 24 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 032 PROBATION SERVICE FEE

MARCH 2024 SERVICES 7/5/2024 PROBATION
$210.00MOBRE COUNSELING SERVICES, LLC 03200005206 FUTURE EXPENDITURES640557

$210.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 032 : $210.00

Page 25 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 041 COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

393893 7/5/2024 911
$218.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 04100005192 EQUIPMENT & REPAIRS41017

12177 7/5/2024 911
$1,536.00NG-911/SOLACOM 04100005373 NETWORKING &TELEPHONE640472

$1,754.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 041 : $1,754.00

Page 26 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 054 COUNTY HEALTH FUND

12638725 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$290.70CERTASITE, LLC 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL640476

JUNE 2024 SIPA 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT / INSURANCE REIMBURSE
$83.16CHLOE KNASEN 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      640801

JUNE 2024 SIPA 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT / INSURANCE REIMBURSE
$83.16DAWN HOLLAND 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      54000

JUNE 2024 SIPA 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT / INS REIMBURSE
$83.16DOUGLAS LIEB 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      54039

JULY 2024 7/5/2024 JULY ADMIN FEES
$32.00PACT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CORP 05400006025 HEALTH INS ADMINISTRATIVE FE3276

JUNE 2024 SIPA 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT / INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT
$83.16SARAH MCCASKEY 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      640106

JUNE 2024 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$325.00STEPHANIE S. HUGHES 05400005437 PART-TIME JANITOR640770

JULY 2024 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT / MONTHLY ADMIN CONTRACT
$2,043.40STEPHENSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPART. 05400005382 MANAGEMENT CONTRACT54018

8007452103 7/5/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$86.55Stericycle 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL54008

$3,110.29Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 054 : $3,110.29

Page 27 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 056 PET POPULATION CONTR
OL FUND

7.5.24 7/5/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / NEUTER
$245.00NORTHERN ILLINOIS VET SERVICES 05600005503 SPAY & NEUTERING2951

$245.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 056 : $245.00

Page 28 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:15 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 074 TRANSPORTATION GRANT

CCT#005_6/24/2024 7/5/2024 BI-WEEKLY REIMBURSEMENT
$23,643.72CARROLL COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES ORG 07400005510 DISBURSEMENTS30001

$23,643.72Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 074 : $23,643.72

Page 29 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:16 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 084 CORONA VIRUS RELIEF FU
ND

572601 7/5/2024 HWY DEPT / DOORS
$2,515.08DAN'S OVERHEAD DOORS AND MOORE 08400009208 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS - EXP640737

$2,515.08Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 084 : $2,515.08

Page 30 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:16 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 087 PUBLIC DEFENDER SAFET
Y ACT

393883 7/5/2024 PUBLIC DEFENDER
$39.99COMPUTER DYNAMICS 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 1091

$39.99Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 087 : $39.99

Page 31 of 32Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 8:51:16 AM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  
Bank =  

Batch = BPIV
Due Date = 
Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

24 PUBLIC DEFENDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2022JA1_6.5.24 7/5/2024 ATTY FEES
$1,133.97RONALD P. KALLEMEYN 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY2449

$1,133.97Subtotal for Department: 24 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $1,133.97

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 7/3/2024 3:15:28 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  
Bank =  

Batch = DAWN
Due Date = 
Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 029 VITAL RESOLUSION

7.2.24-7.12.24 7/12/2024 CO CLERK / SCANNIN
$259.00DAWN BUSS 02900005441 ARCHIVING                     640877

$259.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 029 : $259.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: amybuss 7/12/2024 3:00:21 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  
Bank = 

Batch = 
Due Date = 7/18/2024
Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

01 COURTHOUSE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

304023801_7.22.24 7/18/2024 COURTHOUSE
$2,047.35BRIGHTSPEED 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE640705

KLOEPPING_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 RYAN KLOEPPING
$15.75CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE1464

CPN000781569_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 CARROLL COUNTY
$354.72CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE1464

RENKES_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 SARA RENKES
$96.99CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE1464

5.1.24-6.1.24 7/18/2024 SEWER/WATER
$198.50CITY OF MT. CARROLL 01101005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE900

5.1.24-6.1.24 7/18/2024 SEWER/WATER
$184.00CITY OF MT. CARROLL 01101005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE900

394014 7/18/2024 MONTHLY EMAIL SECURITY
$144.30COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE1091

394016 7/18/2024 MONTHLY WEB HOSTING
$21.95COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE1091

10002005_7.19.24 7/18/2024 SHERIFFS RADIO
$69.04JCE CO-OP 01101005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE640884

10002004 7/18/2024 COURTHOUSE
$3,727.83JCE CO-OP 01101005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE640884

2009764592406 7/18/2024 COURTHOUSE
$45.26MCI 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE640191

Page 1 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)

Committee On Claims



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

$6,905.69Subtotal for Department: 01 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 2 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

02 SUPPLIES AND RENTALSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

T2426453 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$259.00TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV. FUND 01102005319 RENTALS & LEASE640198

$259.00Subtotal for Department: 02 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 3 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

03 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

INV612831 7/18/2024 ASSESSOR
$93.00STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN4192

$93.00Subtotal for Department: 03 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 4 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

05 SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

ASSESSOR_6.30.24 7/18/2024 ASSESSOR: 01578476-001, 01578477-001
$320.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01105005323 PRINTING SUPPLIES & OTHERS2960

$320.00Subtotal for Department: 05 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 5 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

07 ELECTIONSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

BUSS JULY 2024 7/18/2024 AMY BUSS
$4,000.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01107005036 CONTRACT- TEXT MY GOV         1464

BUSS JULY 2024 7/18/2024 AMY BUSS
$1,380.86CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01107005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1464

01578466-001 7/18/2024 CO CLERK / ELECTION JUDGES
$280.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01107005024 ELECTION PUBLICATIONS         2960

$5,660.86Subtotal for Department: 07 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 6 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

12 COUNTY TREASURERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

HUTCHCRAFT_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 LYDIA HUTCHCRAFT
$66.16CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1464

JULY 2024 7/18/2024 TREASURER / PETTY CASH
$5.92CARROLL COUNTY TREASURER 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES4390

18736 7/18/2024 TREASURER
$554.35KALEEL'S CLOTHING & PRINTING 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES640316

01578504-001 7/18/2024 TREASURER
$180.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES2960

S508768 7/18/2024 TREASURER
$15.00PEARSON 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3565

01553030-001 7/18/2024 TREASURER
$180.00SAVANNA TIMES JOURNAL 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3800

$1,001.43Subtotal for Department: 12 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 7 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

13 COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

BUSS JULY 2024 7/18/2024 AMY BUSS
$100.46CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01113005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1464

S508767 7/18/2024 CO CLERK
$15.00PEARSON 01113005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3565

$115.46Subtotal for Department: 13 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 8 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

17 ZONINGDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

01578439-001 7/18/2024 ZONING / WEED NOTICE
$200.00MIRROR DEMOCRAT 01117006041 NOXIOUS WEED ADMINISTRATIO2960

01553029-001 7/18/2024 WEDD CONTROL / ZONING
$150.00SAVANNA TIMES JOURNAL 01117006041 NOXIOUS WEED ADMINISTRATIO3800

$350.00Subtotal for Department: 17 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 9 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

19 DOG CATCHERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

10002001_7.19.24 7/18/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL
$122.73JCE CO-OP 01119006039 AUTO TELEPHONE & SUPPLIES640884

7.18.24 7/18/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL / SUPPLIES
$64.94LISA ASHBY 01119005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES157

$187.67Subtotal for Department: 19 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 10 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

20 COUNTY SHERRIFFDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

79681 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$403.98BALCO UNIFORM 01120006046 UNIFORMS640378

2828 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$1,246.86BIELEMA AUTO REPAIR & SALES 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE383

KLOEPPING_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 RYAN KLOEPPING
$49.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES1464

KLOEPPING_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 RYAN KLOEPPING
$1,335.04CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01120006048 TRAINING FEES1464

KLOEPPING_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 RYAN KLOEPPING
$174.48CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01120006046 UNIFORMS1464

CPN000781569_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 CARROLL COUNTY
$9.04CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01120006073 DIETING OF PRISONERS1464

CPN000781569_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 CARROLL COUNTY
$98.21CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01120006048 TRAINING FEES1464

STATEMENT 6.30.24 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$440.34CARQUEST OF MT.CARROLL 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE640474

7.18.24 7/18/2024 SHERIFF PETTY CASH
$206.72CARROLL CO. SHERIFF 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3960

JUNE 2024 FUEL 7/18/2024 SHERIFF FUEL
$4,526.37CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT. 01120006051 SHERIFF--FUEL2040

23084883-PX_6.21.24 7/18/2024 INMATE
$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

23084882-PX_6.21.24 7/18/2024 INMATE
$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

Page 11 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

23084881-PX_6.21.24 7/18/2024 INMATE
$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

23084873_PX_6.21.24 7/18/2024 INMATE
$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

202300179 7/18/2024 SHERIFF / SUNDQUIST BOND
$74.88CLARK CARROLL INSURANCE AGENCY 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES2255

57666 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$150.83EWERS GARAGE 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE1540

028276695 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$61.34GALLS LLC 01120006046 UNIFORMS1771

028276282 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$83.95GALLS LLC 01120006046 UNIFORMS1771

7.18.24 REIMBURSEMENT 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$110.20JOSI ANDERSON 01120006046 UNIFORMS640649

7.18.24 REIMBURSE 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$276.36KLARISSA TRUEMPER 01120006046 UNIFORMS640413

STATEMENT 6.30.24 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$177.21MT.CARROLL PHARMACY 01120006086 PRISONER PRESCRIPTION3380

002322 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$540.00NORTHWEST BODY CO. 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE3210

002325 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$150.00NORTHWEST BODY CO. 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3210

116239 7/18/2024 SHERIFF
$347.12UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

$10,661.93Subtotal for Department: 20 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 12 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

22 EMERGENCY SERVICESDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

287314771337X07032024 7/18/2024 EMA
$72.48AT&T MOBILITY 01122007055 CELL PHONE640659

$72.48Subtotal for Department: 22 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 13 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

24 PUBLIC DEFENDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2022JA3,4,5_7.8.24 7/18/2024 ATTY FEES
$75.00DAVID WEISSMILLER 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY640170

2021JA3,4_7.12.24 7/18/2024 ATTY FEES
$75.00DAVID WEISSMILLER 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY640170

850395323 7/18/2024 JUDGE KANE
$100.00THOMSON REUTERS-WEST 01124007116 LEGAL SEARCH SUBSCRIPTION4326

$250.00Subtotal for Department: 24 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 14 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

25 PROBATIONDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

ARNO_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 MARCIE ARNO
$294.70CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01125005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1464

ARNO_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 MARCIE ARNO
$18.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01125007072 PERSONAL SAFETY1464

394017 7/18/2024 PROBATION
$50.88COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01125007070 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE1091

7.18.24 7/18/2024 REIMBURSEMENT
$15.50MARCIE ARNO 01125007078 CELL PHONES2424

9968 7/18/2024 PROBATION
$72.50NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE SOLUTIONS 01125005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3172

$451.58Subtotal for Department: 25 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 15 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

26 STATES ATTORNEYDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

KANEY JULY 2024 7/18/2024 AARON KANEY
$490.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01126005010 DUES1464

KANEY JULY 2024 7/18/2024 AARON KANEY
$131.28CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01126005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1464

$621.28Subtotal for Department: 26 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 16 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

27 CIRCUIT CLERKDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

HIHER_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 PATRICIA HIHER
$225.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01127005014 EDUCATION1464

HIHER_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 PATRICIA HIHER
$31.65CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01127005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1464

S508771 7/18/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK
$7.50PEARSON 01127005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3565

$264.15Subtotal for Department: 27 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 17 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

28 COURT EXPENSES - JUDGESDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

15 CC SLB 1 7/18/2024 COURT REPORTER
$84.00MARY ELLEN DOUGLASS 01128005341 OTHER EXPENDITURES640740

S508770 7/18/2024 JUDGE
$15.00PEARSON 01128005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-BOOKS/P3565

850395323 7/18/2024 JUDGE KANE
$286.88THOMSON REUTERS-WEST 01128005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES-BOOKS/P4326

$385.88Subtotal for Department: 28 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 18 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

31 FINANCIAL SOFTWAREDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

394018 7/18/2024 TREASURER
$55.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01131005431 FINANCIAL SOFTWARE SUPPOR1091

394018 7/18/2024 TREASURER
$459.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01131005525 BACKUP SUPPORT                1091

$514.00Subtotal for Department: 31 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 19 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

35 HIGHWAY OFFICE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

5.1.24-6.1.24 7/18/2024 SEWER/WATER
$86.50CITY OF MT. CARROLL 01135005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITYWATER  900

10002002_7.19.24 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT OFFICE
$185.68JCE CO-OP 01135005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITYWATER  640884

86643320004_8.12.24 7/18/2024 HWY OFFICE BLDG
$49.75NICOR GAS 01135005006 UTILITIES--GAS                1800

$321.93Subtotal for Department: 35 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $28,436.34

Page 20 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 013 BRIDGE AID FUND

CLAIM 2215 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS WASHINGTON
$675.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4900

CLAIM 2213 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
$2,700.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005114 AID TO TWPS IN BLDING BRIDGE4900

CLAIM 2214 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
$225.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005114 AID TO TWPS IN BLDING BRIDGE4900

CLAIM 2215 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS WASHINGTON
$675.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005114 AID TO TWPS IN BLDING BRIDGE4900

CLAIM 2216 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS WOODLAND
$1,800.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005114 AID TO TWPS IN BLDING BRIDGE4900

CLAIM 2217 7/18/2024 PROF SERVICES
$1,060.14WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4900

CLAIM 2216 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS WOODLAND
$1,800.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4900

CLAIM 2212 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
$675.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005114 AID TO TWPS IN BLDING BRIDGE4900

CLAIM 2214 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
$225.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4900

CLAIM 2213 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
$2,700.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4900

CLAIM 2212 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
$675.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4900

CLAIM 2211 7/18/2024 BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
$3,600.00WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01300008552 CAPITAL OUTLAY                4900

Page 21 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

$16,810.14Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 013 : $16,810.14

Page 22 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 014 COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

CLAIM 4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / RETURNED LOAD
$151.20ASPHALT SALES COMPANY 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG640779

RENKES_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 SARA RENKES
$90.66CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01400005109 ADMINISTRATIVE1464

RENKES_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 SARA RENKES
$261.80CARDMEMBER SERVICES 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE1464

CLAIM 4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / SHOP SUPPLIES
$36.27CARQUEST OF MT.CARROLL 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE640474

 CLAIM 4377-C 7/18/2024 SHERIFF & ACO FUEL
$3,522.20CARROLL SERVICE COMPANY 01400005112 REIMBURSEMENTS740

CLAIM 4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / HWY DIESEL FUEL
$2,244.98CARROLL SERVICE COMPANY 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE740

CLAIM 4377-C 7/18/2024 GARAGE WATER & SEWER
$86.50CITY OF MT. CARROLL 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE900

CLAIM 4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / IACO DRUG/ALCOHOL COMPLIANCE
$127.00CONCORDE INC. 01400005109 ADMINISTRATIVE1100

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY SIGNS: COUNTY
$376.72DECKER SUPPLY COMPANY 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE1320

 4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY SIGNS: ELKHORN GROVE & SALEM
$2,605.04DECKER SUPPLY COMPANY 01400005112 REIMBURSEMENTS1320

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / PARTS
$1,371.48E.D. ETNYRE & CO. 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN1530

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / SUPPLIES
$175.84FASTENAL COMPANY 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN1568

Page 23 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / ASPHALT CLEANER
$2,329.97FRANMAR CHEMICAL,INC. 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE1731

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / PARTS
$365.87HELM TRUCK AND EQUIPMENT 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN640534

 4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / PARTS
$651.67HELM TRUCK AND EQUIPMENT 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN640534

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / SAFETY SHIRTS
$48.00J&R SUPPLY 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE2402

4377-C 7/18/2024 GARAGE ELECRIC
$254.99JCE CO-OP 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE640884

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / SUPPLIES
$797.04KIMBALL MIDWEST 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE2459

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / COPIER
$106.40NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE SOLUTIONS 01400005109 ADMINISTRATIVE3172

4377-C 7/18/2024 GARAGE GAS USAGE
$144.41NICOR GAS 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE1800

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / RENTAL FEES
$4,850.00ROLAND MACHINERY COMPANY 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG3753

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / SPRAYING
$5,824.00THE SPECIALIST, INC 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG640550

4377-C 7/18/2024 CO ENG CELL PHONE
$91.83U.S. CELLULAR 01400005109 ADMINISTRATIVE4577

 4377-C 7/18/2024 ACO CELLPHONE
$80.21U.S. CELLULAR 01400005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4577

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / UNIFORM RENTAL
$286.76VESTIS 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE640851

4377-C 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / BROOM REFILLS
$981.94ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE4980

Page 24 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

$27,862.78Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 014 : $27,862.78

Page 25 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 015 TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL T
AX

7859-MT 7/18/2024 CA-10
$3,170.50ALLIANCE MATERIALS INC 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS83

7869-MT 7/18/2024 CA-10 WOODLAND
$7,512.40BEDROCK QUARRY PRODUCTS 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS326

7860-MT 7/18/2024 TWP SHARE BRIDGE INSPECTIONS SAVANNA, WOODLAND
$2,025.00COUNTY BRIDGE FUND 01500005332 ENGINEERING500

7861-MT 7/18/2024 CA-10, SC AGGREGATE
$31,685.50DOC'S EXCAVATING 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS640600

7862-MT 7/18/2024 CA-10, SC AGGREGATE
$1,838.48DOC'S EXCAVATING 01500005158 REBUILD ILLINOIS              640600

7863-MT 7/18/2024 LIGNIN
$17,538.15ENVIRONMENTAL ROAD SOLUTIONS 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS1523

7865-MT 7/18/2024 COLD PATCH - SAVANNA
$690.65ROCK VALLEY SERVICES INC 01500005158 REBUILD ILLINOIS              640572

78644-MT 7/18/2024 COLD PATCH - MT.CARROLL & SALEM
$3,391.50ROCK VALLEY SERVICES INC 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS640572

7866-MT 7/18/2024 CA-10 SAVANNA
$164.18SAVANNA QUARRY 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS3806

7867-MT 7/18/2024 CA-10 SALEM
$531.72WENDLING QUARRIES, INC. 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS4791

7868-MT 7/18/2024 EQUIPMENT RENTAL
$3,662.52WOODLAND TOWNSHIP 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS4780

Page 26 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

$72,210.60Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 015 : $72,210.60

Page 27 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 016 COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TA
X

2645-M 7/18/2024 BIT MATL HFRS-2
$57,457.40ASPHALT SALES COMPANY 01600005117 MAINTENANCE640779

2645-M 7/18/2024 COLD PATCH
$3,240.45ROCK VALLEY SERVICES INC 01600005117 MAINTENANCE640572

$60,697.85Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 016 : $60,697.85

Page 28 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 018 COUNTY MATCHING FUND

MAT 527 7/18/2024 ENG SERVICES
$2,225.67WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED4900

MAT 528 7/18/2024 ENG SERVICES
$3,480.57WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOC INC. 01800005118 PROJECTS TO BE IDENTIFIED4900

$5,706.24Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 018 : $5,706.24

Page 29 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 023 COUNTY RECORDER FEES

0709386-IN 7/18/2024 AVID & APEX JUNE 2024
$657.40FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02300006031 RECORDERS--TRANSACTION FE1660

$657.40Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 023 : $657.40

Page 30 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 027 ANIMAL CONTROL

7.18.24 7/18/2024 ANIAML CONTROL
$180.00Whodapet, Inc 02700005379 REGISTRATION CONTRACT         640363

$180.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 027 : $180.00

Page 31 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 032 PROBATION SERVICE FEE

ARNO_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 MARCIE ARNO
$83.75CARDMEMBER SERVICES 03200005206 FUTURE EXPENDITURES1464

$83.75Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 032 : $83.75

Page 32 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 041 COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

287318886106X07032024 7/18/2024 911
$616.08AT&T MOBILITY 04100005373 NETWORKING &TELEPHONE640659

MAGILL_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 MATTHEW MAGILL
$93.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 04100005197 TRAINING1464

MAGILL_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 MATTHEW MAGILL
$253.91CARDMEMBER SERVICES 04100005192 EQUIPMENT & REPAIRS1464

82559 7/18/2024 ETSB
$1,625.00LECTRONICS, INC 04100005191 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES41029

P102643 7/18/2020 ETSB
$3,589.08NELSON SYSTEMS 04100005191 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES41001

12240 7/18/2024 911
$1,536.00NG-911/SOLACOM 04100005373 NETWORKING &TELEPHONE640472

$7,713.07Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 041 : $7,713.07

Page 33 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 054 COUNTY HEALTH FUND

304001747_7.22.24 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$121.34BRIGHTSPEED 05400005085 TELEPHONE640705

HOLLAND JULY 2024 7/18/2024 DAWN HOLLAND
$100.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 05400005085 TELEPHONE1464

LIEB_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 DOUGLAS LIEB
$22.70CARDMEMBER SERVICES 05400006258 SIPA VISION                   1464

HOLLAND JULY 2024 7/18/2024 DAWN HOLLAND
$37.89CARDMEMBER SERVICES 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1464

LIEB_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 DOUGLAS LIEB
$58.01CARDMEMBER SERVICES 05400005012 TRAVEL1464

HOLLAND JULY 2024 7/18/2024 DAWN HOLLAND
$68.10CARDMEMBER SERVICES 05400006258 SIPA VISION                   1464

LIEB_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 DOUGLAS LIEB
$129.00CARDMEMBER SERVICES 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1464

JULY 2024 7/18/2024 HEALTH INS REIMBURSEMENT
$83.16CHLOE KNASEN 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      640801

5.1.24-6.1.24 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$86.50CITY OF MT.CARROLL 05400005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE54144

394015 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$21.70COMPUTER DYNAMICS OF N.W. IL. 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL54143

JULY 2024 7/18/2024 HEALTH INS REIMBURSE
$83.16DAWN HOLLAND 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      54000

JULY 2024 7/18/2024 REIMBURSE HEALTH INS
$83.16DOUGLAS LIEB 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      54039

Page 34 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

10002007 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$74.99JCE CO-OP 05400005085 TELEPHONE640880

10002006_7.19.24 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$323.10JCE CO-OP 05400005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE640880

16792316 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$162.93LEAF 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL2614

UPPCT0000004690 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$225.00MITCHELL & MCCORMICK INC 05400005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE640148

17264199393_8.12.24 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$50.54NICOR 05400005004 UTILITIES--ELECTRICITY & WATE54118

247208555 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$310.50PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL640633

9210413433 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$697.44QUEST DIAGNOSTICS 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL54134

JUNE 2024 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$189.00RICK McDONOUGH 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL54157

JULY 2024 7/18/2024 HEALTH INS REIMBURSE
$83.16SARAH MCCASKEY 05400006256 SIPA ENHANCED INSURANCE      640106

AZELIS A&ES 137439 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$1,080.72STEPHENSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPART. 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG54018

INV12779 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$196.97STERLING BUSINESS MACHINES 05400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG54050

0661011445 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$38.10US CELLULAR 05400005085 TELEPHONE54005

1211-00024-0000 7/18/2024 HEALTH DEPT
$1,500.00WCCI-FM 05400005344 CONTRACTUAL640245

Page 35 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

$5,827.17Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 054 : $5,827.17

Page 36 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 055 GRANTS

HIHER_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 PATRICIA HIHER
$4.61CARDMEMBER SERVICES 05500005149 GRANT MONEY EXPENSES          1464

$4.61Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 055 : $4.61

Page 37 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 056 PET POPULATION CONTR
OL FUND

7.18.24 7/18/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL
$406.18MT. CARROLL VETERINARY CLINIC 05600005503 SPAY & NEUTERING4680

7.18.24 7/18/2024 ANIMAL CONTROL - 3 DOGS
$950.30NORTHERN ILLINOIS VET SERVICES 05600005503 SPAY & NEUTERING2951

$1,356.48Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 056 : $1,356.48

Page 38 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 074 TRANSPORTATION GRANT

MASZK JULY 2024 7/18/2024 MARY MASZK
$9.85CARDMEMBER SERVICES 07400005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG1464

$9.85Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 074 : $9.85

Page 39 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 084 CORONA VIRUS RELIEF FU
ND

KLINEFELTER_JULY 2024 7/18/2024 JAMES KLINEFELTER
$243.32CARDMEMBER SERVICES 08400009208 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS - EXP1464

573235 7/18/2024 HWY DEPT / REAR SHED BUILDING
$3,341.44DAN'S OVERHEAD DOORS AND MOORE 08400009208 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS - EXP640737

$3,584.76Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 084 : $3,584.76

Page 40 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 087 PUBLIC DEFENDER SAFET
Y ACT

7.18.24 7/18/2024 PUBLIC DEFENDER OFFICE
$914.00BENTLEY PAINTING 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 640823

393966 7/18/2024 PUBLIC DEFENDER
$617.50COMPUTER DYNAMICS 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS                 1091

$1,531.50Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 087 : $1,531.50

Page 41 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date
Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description
Vendor Account Account Description

Fund Totals
Fund Fund TotalFund Name

011 $28,436.34GENERAL FUND

013 $16,810.14BRIDGE AID FUND

014 $27,862.78COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

015 $72,210.60TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL 

016 $60,697.85COUNTY MOTOR FUEL TA

018 $5,706.24COUNTY MATCHING FUN

023 $657.40COUNTY RECORDER FEES

027 $180.00ANIMAL CONTROL

032 $83.75PROBATION SERVICE FEE

041 $7,713.07COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

054 $5,827.17COUNTY HEALTH FUND

055 $4.61GRANTS

056 $1,356.48PET POPULATION CONTR

074 $9.85TRANSPORTATION GRAN

084 $3,584.76CORONA VIRUS RELIEF F

087 $1,531.50PUBLIC DEFENDER SAFET

$232,672.54Total:

Page 42 of 42Operator: amybuss 7/15/2024 12:53:45 PM
Report ID: (APLT22)



 
 

July 12, 2024 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
July 18th, 2024 

SECTION NUMBER 20-00102-00-PV IDEAL ROAD CONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
1. Agenda Item: Approval of the Joint Funding Agreement for Federally Funded Construction IDOT 

form for Section Number 20-00102-00-PV Ideal Road 
2. Agenda Item: Approval of the adjusted Matching Fund Resolution for Section Number 20-00102-

00-PV Ideal Road in the amount of $600,000. 
The first agenda item is the joint funding agreement with IDOT for the construction of the Ideal Road 
project. Page 9 of this document shows a breakdown of fund utilization. We will use MFT, specifically 
Rebuild Illinois Funds, as part of our local match. The previously approved documents are included. 
Federal funds will be paid through the state, so we no longer need a large amount approved through the 
matching fund for means of reimbursement. Therefore, I request an adjusted Matching Fund Resolution, 
which includes the cost of acquiring easements, Agenda Item 2. The department recommends approving 
both agenda items. 
 
SECTION NUMBER 19-00101-00-BR ARMY DEPOT BRIDGE REPAIR 

3. Agenda Item: Approval for the county board chairman to sign a letter of support for the 
maintenance of the Army Depot Bridge Repair over the Apple Creek, to be submitted with the 
RISE Grant application. 

This letter was written to be submitted with the RISE Grant application. This Army Depot Bridge project 
was included with the Capital Improvement Plan that was approved at the last meeting. I have been 
working with Blackhawk Hills to complete the RISE Grant application that would cover 75% of the cost of 
this project. The department recommends approval for this letter to be signed and submitted with the 
RISE Grant application. 
 
SECTION NUMBER 22-13707-00-BR LORAN ROAD CULVERT REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

4. Agenda Item: Approval of the Public Agency Formal Contract with Law Excavating Inc. for 
Section Number 22-13707-00-BR Loran Road Culvert Replacement Project. 

Loran Culvert replacement bid was obtained by Law Excavating at $45,750, out of 7 bidders. I requested 
$100,000 from the Bridge Aid fund on June 6th with Willet’s project estimate being $75,000. This 
estimate was slightly higher than middle of the bids received. 
 
This contract approval will allow Law Excavating to begin work on Loran Road Culvert Replacement, just 
east of Meyers Road. This contract and the plans are attached to the packet. The department 
recommends approval of this contract. 
 
SHANNON CULVERT REPLACEMENT LETTING RESULTS 
Shannon Culvert replacement bid was obtained by M&M Concrete at $314,545, out of 9 bidders. I 
requested $450,000 from the Bridge Aid fund on June 6th with Willet’s project estimate being $438,000. 
This estimate was slightly higher than middle of the bids received. 
 
BIG CUT BRIDGE REPLACEMENT OVER BNSF 
The county had a Notice of Status Meeting with BNSF and the ICC on July 10th. Another update meeting 
will be held on August 13th.  The letting for this project, if the hearing and ICC funds are approved prior 
to October 11th, will be January 17th of 2025. 
 



 
 

MAINTENANCE 
Ogle Road and Brookville Road have been seal-coated. Benson is being seal-coated this week with 
flaggers instead of being closed completely. We will be returning to Georgetown and the Shannon Route 
at the end of the season. 
 
GARAGE DOOR INSTALLATION 
There will be an added cost for the installation of electrical wiring on the far southeast building, which 
was expected. An unexpected cost was added due to miscommunication regarding the window panel on 
the main garage door. Due to this miscommunication, we will only be paying for material and no added 
cost due to labor to install; $795.44. This will be paid utilizing Highway Funds under line item 5105. 













1 | P a g e        Board Meeting Minutes/June 27, 2024 
   
 

Tri-County Opportunities Council 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 27, 2024 
 

Chair Harmon called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. He welcomed Stephanie Foes, the new Bureau 
County Category B Board Member, and reminded those attending virtually to mute themselves when 
not speaking.  
 
The membership recited the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Ms. Calkins, President/CEO, took roll call.  A quorum was present.   
 
Members Present: (In-person participants are bolded) 
Reed Akre, Charlotte Balensiefen, Sue Britt, Robin Camplain, Bernene Dahl, Kim Dahl, David Ditzler, 
Stephanie Foes, Al Harmon, Marcia Heuer, John Hockstadt, Julie Jacobs, Betty Johnson, Lisa Johnson, 
Ron Kleppin, Kenneth Krogulski, Ronald Preston, Juanita Randklev, Becky Rich, David Torres, Jeanne 
Vargas. 

Members Absent: 
Susan Bursztynsky, Mary Cork, Lynnae Garrett, BJ Holocker, Tom Howes, Kristy Jones, Betsy Kinder, Brad 
Lindstrom, Ginny McPerryman, Inga Neuner, Linda Pennell, Michael McEmery, Denise Russell, Marissa 
Trumper, and Laura Watters, Derek Whited Lorene Winfield. 

Others Present: 
Jill Calkins, Rachael DeSpain, Vanessa Hoffeditz, Tammy Saenz, Wayne Thompson, Neddie Watts. 
 
Minutes: 
The May 28, 2024 Board minutes were previously sent to all members for review.  Ms. Lisa Johnson 
made a motion to approve the minutes. Ms. Balensiefen seconded the motion. A roll call vote was 
taken, and the motion carried.   
 
Financial Report: 
The April 2024 Financial Reports were provided to the membership for review prior to tonight’s 
meeting. Mr. Kleppin made a motion to accept the April 2024 Financial Reports and file them for audit. 
Mr. Hockstadt seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried. 
 
Fiscal Report: Dawn Kanzler’s report was given by Ms. Calkins 
Approval was sought to file the 2023 Tri-County Opportunities Council’s IRS Form 990 and Illinois Form 
AG990 as per the recommendation of the Audit/Finance Committee. Ms. Balensiefen made a motion to 
approve the filings per the recommendation of the Audit/Finance Committee. Ms. Betty Johnson 
seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried.  

Action to approve the Agency’s 2023 Form 5500 Annual Return/Report of Employee Benefit Plan as per 
the recommendation of the Audit/Finance Committee was sought. Ms. Lisa Johnson made a motion to 



2 | P a g e        Board Meeting Minutes/June 27, 2024 
   
 

approve the Agency’s 2023 Form 5500 Annual Return/Report of Employee Benefit Plan. Ms. Vargas 
seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried.  

Approval was sought to file the indirect cost rate proposal for calendar year 2023, as per the 
recommendation of the Audit/Finance Committee. Mr. Hockstadt made a motion to approve the filing. 
Mr.  Kleppin seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried.  

Approval was sought to renew the Agency’s line of credit at $600,000 with Sauk Valley Bank, effective 
August 1, 2024. Ms. Vargas made a motion to approve the renewal of the Agency’s line of credit at 
$600,000. Ms. Balensiefen seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried.  

Lastly, action was sought to approve Jill Calkins, President/CEO, as the authorized signer for the line of 
credit renewal. Ms. Vargas made a motion to approve Jill Calkins, President/CEO, as the authorized 
signer for the line of credit renewal. Mr. Kleppin seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the 
motion carried.  

The ending book balance for May was (261,926.58). A balance of $417,602 was owed on the line of 
credit to Sauk Valley Bank as of May 31, 2024.  As Ms. Kanzler mentioned last month, receiving cash 
requests from the state is taking twice as long. Discussion followed regarding the financial impact this 
has on the Agency due to interest charges.  
 
The Agency’s package and umbrella insurance policies with Philadelphia were renewed effective July 1, 
2024, with an increase of 8.5% or $12,595 for an annual premium of $161,122. The property and 
casualty (liability) market has been stable; however, concerning claim trends with social inflation and 
nuclear verdicts are being monitored. The commercial auto market is also experiencing rising costs of 
repairs and liability payouts that could increase renewals in the future. 
 
Among the Board handouts are minutes from the May Audit/Finance Committee Meeting and a 
required communication letter from Sikich that provides the membership with information related to 
the Agency audit.  
 
 
Program Reports: 
 
Community Services Block Grant (CSBG): Neddie Watts 
Ms. Watts sought Board approval to accept an additional $76,852.21 to the 2025 DHS Homeless 
Prevention Program to help sustain housing for households at risk of becoming homeless, which will 
begin in July. Ms. Lisa Johnson made a motion to accept the additional DHS Homeless Prevention funds 
of $76,852.21. Ms. Balensiefen seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried.  

Ms. Watts reported that the board packets included a copy of a new flyer that will be used during 
community events, provided to partners, and posted in organizations, businesses, etc. The flyer includes 
all of the contact information for each program per county.  
 



3 | P a g e        Board Meeting Minutes/June 27, 2024 
   
 

Also included in the packets was an update for Strategic Plan Goal Four: Poverty-Focused-Family-
Centered. She stated that their next meeting would be in early July since other planning committees 
were meeting in June. This meeting will finalize survey questions to be distributed in August to gather 
input on customer satisfaction.  
 
Additionally, she informed the Planning/Evaluation Committee that she would be setting a few Zoom 
meetings in July so the Committee can help review data to develop work programs per the new 
Community Needs Assessment and Community Action Plan guidelines. She stated she will mail the data 
along with the meeting dates. She encouraged other members to join this committee and participate in 
these meetings. If interested, she requested they contact her by Tuesday, July 2.  
 
She happily reported that the Outreach Workers that cover Whiteside and Lee County would be moving 
to their new location at 300 1st Avenue, Suite 3, in Rock Falls, on July 1, along with two LIHEAP 
employees and one Head Start employee, with other employees from Weatherization joining at a later 
date. She stated that this new module is part of the Agency’s Strategic Planning process of bundling 
services. For example, when someone applies for LIHEAP and tells that employee they need help with 
rent, they can walk them to the CSBG Outreach Worker to apply because they already have most of the 
paperwork required to apply for LIHEAP. If they have children under 5, a Head Start employee will begin 
their paperwork. She referred to it as a “one-stop shop.”  This will help customers apply for services 
quickly and more efficiently. 
 
In addition to the new move, she stated that CSBG Outreach Workers can schedule appointments online 
using a new software system called Calendly. Customers seeking services can go directly to our website, 
click on their county, enter their contact information, and click on any services they are seeking. They 
will then be directed to another screen to choose the best date and time that works for them based on 
that particular Outreach Worker’s calendar. After scheduling the appointment, the customer will receive 
an email confirming the appointment and will receive a text and email the day before the appointment. 
The services they seek to apply for will also be indicated during the scheduling process. This new option 
will also help them apply for services faster and prevent the back and forth of returning phone calls, 
leaving voicemails, etc.  
 
The 2nd Annual TCOC Charity Softball Tournament and Family Picnic is underway. Due to a state 
tournament, the date had to be changed from August 10th to September 28th. The tournament will be 
held at the same location and in the same fashion as last year. They are currently looking for raffle 
basket donations and are seeking help in selling 50/50 tickets. Flyers were brought to tonight’s meeting 
for members to take if they know of anyone or any business who would be willing to donate a raffle 
basket. Any support from Board members is greatly appreciated. Ms. Vos will provide more information 
in next month’s Board packets. 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e        Board Meeting Minutes/June 27, 2024 
   
 

Foster Grandparents: Brandi Newell’s report was given by Ms. Calkins 
Foster Grandparent Program Director, Ms. Newell, attended the Points of Light conference June 11-14 in 
Houston. The Conference is dedicated to mobilizing global volunteer efforts and offers many great 
breakout sessions centered around recruitment, retention, utilization, and recognition of volunteers. 
The Central Illinois Volunteer Conference is happening this week in Springfield, focusing on much of the 
same on a more local level. 
 
Invitations for interviews were mailed to twelve new applicants on file. Additional applications arrive 
weekly. Throughout July, their office will vet applicants and initiate background checks before moving 
forward with New Volunteer Orientation in August. 
 
The program was awarded an Illinois Department on Aging grant in the amount of $44,512. This grant 
satisfies the 10% match requirement for our AmeriCorps Seniors grant. 
 
The Foster Grandparent Program is utilizing local teen volunteers to help seniors navigate technology 
challenges. Throughout June and July, Foster Grandparent Volunteers and community members are 
invited to bring their tricky tech questions to the Rock Falls office on Tuesdays from 1 pm to 4 pm. Tech 
Tuesday will not be hosted the week of July 4th. They hope this outreach helps the volunteers and 
others in the community who struggle to keep up in our fast-paced, tech-savvy society. 
 
Early Head Start/Head Start Program: Rachael DeSpain 
Ms. DeSpain sought Board action to approve the Tri-County Opportunities Council Early Head 
Start/Head Start Policy Council By-Laws, which include the Policy Council's composition. The Board is 
responsible for approving the composition of the Policy Council. Copies of the By-Laws were distributed 
during the May Board meeting. Ms. Vargas made a motion to approve the Policy Council By-Laws. Ms. 
Betty Johnson seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried.  

Staffing shortages continue, but on a good note, the program has hired nine employees in the last two 
weeks, with four more in the hiring process.  
 
While they have had limited time to place focus here, Ms. Calkins and Ms. DeSpain continue to consider 
enrollment and staffing challenges, potential changes to the options offered, and the dialogue being had 
at both the State and Federal levels regarding the future of early childhood education. Ensuring the 
program remains viable throughout the communities served is a top priority, and discussions will 
continue. 
 
The program is transitioning one of Sterling's two Early Head Start Center Base classrooms to Streator. 
For over ten years, the program has maintained a lengthy waitlist in the Streator community, including 
children under three eligible for in-person early childhood services. Efforts are underway to finalize the 
move, hire staff, and recruit families.  
 



5 | P a g e        Board Meeting Minutes/June 27, 2024 
   
 

The leadership team's priorities remain updating, understanding, and applying Service Delivery Plans, 
continuing to engage in and plan for potential changes to Head Start Performance Standards, solidifying 
2024-2025 staff professional development opportunities, and interviewing, selecting, and hiring 
qualified staff.  
 
Emphasis on locating, attending, and bringing awareness to Agency services during community events 
remains a top priority. Please continue to offer any information regarding upcoming community events 
in your area. Board engagement at these events is not only welcomed but encouraged.  
 
Ms. DeSpain provided a handout and shared with the membership the importance of family 
engagement events. She explained that family engagement is the act of engaging families in their child’s 
education by developing, maintaining, and supporting relationships and shared experiences. She 
explained that family services are central to the comprehensive services provided by the program. 
Parents are their child’s first and most important teachers. Family engagement events are fueled by the 
shared passion of parents and staff and encompass things such as curriculum planning, menu planning, 
parent networking, Policy Council, etc.  
 
Ms. DeSpain shared and reviewed the 2023-2024 School Readiness Report provided in tonight’s 
handouts. She brought attention to the baseline skills seen in children at the beginning of the year and, 
most impimportantly, the significant gains seen over the school year in all domains. A deep analysis of 
this information will aid the program in identifying trends, setting future goals, and developing staff 
training.  
 
In tonight’s handouts, Ms. DeSpain also provided a copy of the May 2024 Board Report, the enrollment 
status report, and a register of vacant positions. Please encourage interested candidates to visit the 
Agency website at www.tcochelps.org or call 1-800-323-5434. In conclusion, she reminded Board 
members to fill out the In-Kind/Volunteer sheet for any time spent reading over materials previously 
handed out.  
 
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP): Tammy Saenz 
Ms. Saenz reported that applications have slowed down. However, in an effort to serve all in need, they 
have been calling customers who have not yet applied this program year. They will likely have money to 
operate through August 15, the end of the LIHEAP program year. The furnace program ended May 31, 
with $175,865.13 being spent during the eight months the program operated. 
 
They are in the process of re-certifying PIPP customers for the upcoming year to determine their 
eligibility to remain in the program. The customers who have been on the program for the last few years 
have truly benefited. Many have managed to get their balances paid and no longer need the program.  
 
Some new projects are coming in the next program year. Illinois Solar for All will offer a solar 
subscription program for income-eligible households. In addition, low-income discount rates for Ameren 

http://www.tcochelps.org/


6 | P a g e        Board Meeting Minutes/June 27, 2024 
   
 

gas and Nicor gas customers will be implemented statewide beginning October 1. More information will 
be provided in the upcoming months.  
 
Weatherization/Housing Program: Wayne Thompson 
Mr. Thompson reported that the Weatherization Department is winding down the DEO grant portion of 
the Weatherization Program. The last day of the Program is June 30. The contractors will work through 
this weekend. The remaining funds left in the HHS and State programs will be rolled over into a “Grant 
Carryover Period”  and must be spent by September 30. They will exhaust these carryover funds and 
some 2025 grant funds, completing the multi-unit.  
 
They have received the HHS and State grant agreements and the DOE BIL Modification grant for the 
2025 program year. They are still awaiting the DOE Grant Agreement and expect to receive it soon.     
The Weatherization Department has continued working on the 70-unit multi-project Victor Meadow 
Senior Living apartments in Princeton. They will complete two buildings by this weekend and have them 
inspected first thing next week.   
 
The program was selected for Department of Energy (DOE) Monitoring. The week of July 15, DOE 
representatives will visit the Agency, review files, and inspect work completed at the Princeton Multi-
Unit Project and four single-family homes.     
 
Mr. Thompson reported that the Agency had a small fire at one of the rental units in Sterling. There 
were no injuries and minimal damage, and they hope to have the families back in the units by tomorrow 
evening.  

  
President/CEO’s Report: Jill Calkins 
Ms. Calkins reported that there is currently one Board vacancy: LaSalle County Category B. 
 
Members received a copy of the Strategic Plan Progress Reports in tonight's handouts, with information 
regarding the communication, customer satisfaction, and staff retention goals. Ms. Calkins reported that 
committee groups are meeting and making steady progress. She encouraged any members interested in 
joining one of the committee groups to reach out.  
 
Scholarship winners must submit their fall schedules by June 29, 2024. Ms. Calkins reported that she has 
received about nine thus far. Once all schedules are received, checks will be mailed to the respective 
colleges.  
 
Ms. Calkins reminded members that the July Meeting will be held at the Mendota Civic Center and will 
be an in-person meeting only. Scholarship award winners will be invited to be recognized by the Board 
of Directors. A variety of appetizers will be available. Unfortunately, Ms. Calkins will be unable to attend, 
but Ms. Kanzler has graciously agreed to sit in her place, and Ms. Watts has agreed to announce the 
scholarship winners who are in attendance and provide them with a certificate.   



7 | P a g e        Board Meeting Minutes/June 27, 2024 
   
 

 
Each year at the annual meeting, Board members are recognized for their service on the Board. 
Recognition is awarded in five-year increments. Ms. Calkins recognized the following members. A 
certificate and a small gift of appreciation will be delivered to them.   

• Marissa Trumper (5 years)  
• Julie Jacobs (20 years) 

 
Old Business:  
There was no old business at this time.  
 
New Business:  
The Nominating Committee recommended the re-election of the slate of officers as follows: 
 Albert Harmon, Chairperson  
 Jeanne Vargas, Vice-Chairperson 
 Julie Jacobs, Secretary 
 Susan Bursztynsky, Treasurer  

Board action was sought to approve the slate of officers as recommended by the Nominating 
Committee. Ms. Bernene Dahl made a motion to approve the slate of officers as recommended. Mr. 
Hockstadt seconded the motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried. 
 
Ms. Calkins informed the membership that check signers also needed to be named for the 2024-25 year.  
Presently, it is the Board Chairperson and Treasurer. Ms. Lisa Johnson made a motion to continue having 
the Board Chairperson and Treasurer named as the Agency check signers. Mr. Kleppin seconded the 
motion. A vote was called, and the motion carried.  
 
Ms. Calkins also informed the membership that signers for Agency documents need to be authorized for 
the 2024-2025 year. Presently, they are the four Board officers and/or the President/CEO.  In addition, 
on some grants, the Fiscal Operations Manager is deemed the signatory “designee” for a time when the 
President/CEO may not be available. The Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (DCEO) 
will only accept the President/CEO’s signature and/or their designee.  Ms. Randklev made a motion to 
keep the current signers for Agency documents as the four Board officers, the President/CEO, and/or 
her designee, the Fiscal Operations Manager. Mr. Kleppin seconded the motion. A vote was called, and 
the motion carried.  
 
Next Meeting: 
The next Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, July 23, 2024, at the Mendota Civic Center, 1901 Tom 
Merwin Drive, Mendota, IL 61342, at 6:00 p.m. This will be an in-person meeting only.  

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m.   



Chapter 20 
COUNTY BOARD PROCEDURE 

 

20-1  Statement of Purpose 

It is the intention of the Carroll County Board (Board) in adopting this Ordinance to expedite the 
Board's business and protect the rights of all County Board Members (Members). The rules 
should assure common sense, courtesy, and fairness. This Ordinance is supplemental to state 
laws, including Illinois Compiled Statutes 55 ILCS 5/ Counties Code, 5 ILCS 120/ Open Meetings 
Act and 50 ILCS 145/ LGO Compensation Act which supersede any possible contradictions of this 
Ordinance. 

20-2  Public Notice and Agendas 

At the beginning of each fiscal year the Board will give notice of a dates, times and location of all 
regularly scheduled meetings to the County Clerk (Clerk). The County Clerk shall be responsible 
to publicly post this and all public notices of the Board.  

The Board Chair (Chair) is responsible to create the agenda for meetings. Once created, notice 
for all meetings, in the form of an agenda, will be posted by the County Clerk and released to all 
local news media with general circulation within Carroll County. The posting will occur with at 
least a 48-hour notice prior to the start of the scheduled meeting except in cases provided by 
state statute. The agenda will include: 

1. Meeting title; 
2. Meeting date, time, and location; 
3. Order of Business; and, if known, 
4. Next scheduled meeting date, time, and location. 

Once the agenda has been posted and less than 48 hours before the scheduled meeting, no new 
item may be added except as prescribed by state statute. However, what was posted may be 
presented in a different order or struck by the Chair.  

20-3  Board Meeting Order of Business 

The order of business for Board meetings, outlined by agenda, shall be as follows: 

Call to Order  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll call of Members 

Public Comment 

Business 

Adjournment 

A Member may call for an invocation prior to the call to order. 

The Chair, following the noted order of business, is responsible for creating the agenda for Board 
meetings. The business portion may include presentation, discussion or action items such as: 

1. Consent agenda (routine meeting discussion points with little or no debate, consolidated 
into one item for approval); 

2. County Department reports; 
3. Affiliate reports; 



Chapter 20 
COUNTY BOARD PROCEDURE 

 

4. Committee reports; 
5. Old and New business items; 
6. Chairman reports and appointments; and 
7. Executive Session. 

20-4  Maintenance of Order and Use of Robert’s Rules of Order 

The Chair may conduct meetings informally and, at the Chair’s discretion, invoke the current 
edition of Robert's Rules of Order when deemed necessary for the maintenance of order and the 
conduct of the business by the Board.  

20-5  Minutes 

The County Clerk, or representative of the County Clerk, will produce all minutes of the Board 
meetings. All minutes will be approved by the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting. All 
minutes will be housed for public viewing by the County Clerk and posted for a minimum of one 
year on the County’s web site.  

20-6  Meeting Presider and Succession 

The Chair presides over a Board meeting and conducts its business in an orderly fashion. In the 
Chair’s absence, the Vice-Chair acts as the Chair. In the absence of the Chair and the Vice-Chair, 
the County Clerk will open the meeting, determine that a quorum is present, and preside over 
the meeting through the nominations of the Temporary Chair position. In the event of the County 
Clerk's absence, any other elected or appointed official of the County may preside. After the 
Temporary Chair has been chosen, the meeting will be handed over to the newly appointed 
Temporary Chair. Once elected, the Temporary Chair will have all the responsibilities of the Chair 
for the remainder of the meeting or until the Chair or Vice-Chair arrive at the meeting. 

20-7  Call to Order 

The Board meeting shall be called to order promptly at the scheduled date, time and location as 
set by the publicly posted agenda. 

20-8  Quorum 

A quorum is the minimum number of Members necessary to convene a meeting and shall be 
determined following a ‘call to order’. A quorum shall be a simple majority of the entire Board 
membership and is required to convene a meeting of the Board.  

A Member may attend a meeting by Video or Audio Conference pursuant to the Illinois Open 
Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/7, and further pursuant to the following Carroll County provisions: 

1. If a quorum of the County Board is physically present, a majority of the County Board 
present at the meeting may allow a Member to attend by video or audio conference, 
provided that the Member is prevented from physically attending because of: (i) personal 
illness or disability; (ii) employment purposes or the business of the County; (iii) a family 
or other emergency. 

2. If a Member wishes to attend a meeting by video or audio conference, the Clerk must be 
notified prior to any meeting unless advance notice is impractical.  The Clerk will then 
notify the of the Chair of the Member’s notification. The Member attending electronically 
shall be entitled to vote on matters before the Board and the Clerk shall record such vote 
as having been made electronically.  



Chapter 20 
COUNTY BOARD PROCEDURE 

 

 

If a quorum is not present at roll call, or if during a meeting the attendance drops below a 
quorum, the Members present shall make a motion, second and immediately vote to proceed 
with one of the following options: 

1. adjust the adjournment meeting time to a later date when quorum available, or 
2. adjourn the meeting, pushing agenda to an upcoming scheduled date, or 
3. simply recess and delay continuing until additional members show. 

20-9  Public Comment 

Public comment will be allowed during the meeting’s designated time. Public comment may also 
be allowed during the business portion of the meeting for comments related to agenda items but 
only at the Chair’s approval or with the approval of a Board member’s motion at the time of an 
item’s discussion. 

Prior to addressing the Board, individuals will be asked to state their name, city of residence 
address, and any organization they represent. Individuals will be given 3 minutes to address the 
Board. An extension of time may only be considered and granted by the Chair. Public comment 
is a one-way way for the public to express their views and provide input to the Board without 
Board interaction. 

If a particular subject has brought numerous individuals to address the Board, the Chair may ask 
that they keep their comments to new aspects of the topic and that they do not repeat previous 
comments. This will allow for everyone to be heard. The Chair may invoke other restrictions 
deemed necessary to conduct an efficient and fair meeting. 

20-10  Addressing the Chair and Board Discussion 

The Board is who conducts the business of the Board meeting. The Chair is responsible leading 
and managing the Board meeting. Every Member shall be recognized by the Chair before 
speaking on an issue. (Note exception in 20-9.) The Chair shall determine who shall speak first if 
two or more Members address the Chair at the same time. 

20-11  Presenting a Motion and Debate 

Upon recognition of a Member by the Chair, a motion may be made for the Board to take action. 
No motion shall be debated until there is a second. If there is no second, the motion fails and no 
further action on the motion is taken by the Board. If there is a second, debate follows. A motion 
shall be restated or be reduced to writing if required by any Member. During debate, a Member, 
recognized by the Chair, may ‘Call the Question’. This motion, if seconded, is immediately voted 
upon to end debate. If this passes, a vote is then taken on the original motion without further 
debate. 

20-12  Every Member to Vote 

Every Member present shall vote on a motion presented except when personal interest is 
involved or excused by the Chair. A Member shall notify the Chair as soon as the conflict is 
identified. The conflict of interest shall be stated for the record. Once a conflict is stated, the 
conflicted Member may not participate in either the discussion or vote.  

  



Chapter 20 
COUNTY BOARD PROCEDURE 

 

20-13  Withdrawing a Motion 

After a motion is stated by the Chair it may be withdrawn by the mover, and with consent of the 
Member who seconded, at any time prior to a vote. 

20-14  Amending a Motion 

During debate of a motion, an amendment may be presented which will require a second. Prior 
to further debate on the original motion, the amended motion will be debated by the Board. 
Following debate, the Chair will call for a vote on the amendment. If passed, the original motion 
is modified to reflect the amendment. If the amendment vote fails then the original motion 
stands. Debate will then continue on the original motion. 

20-15  Roll Call Voting 

A roll call vote by random selection of Ayes and Nays shall be taken upon the demand of a single 
Member and on all motions involving County Funds. In any instance of a roll call vote, the minutes 
shall reflect the vote of each member. 

20-16  Executive Session or Closed Meetings 

Executive sessions or closed meetings by the Board shall only be conducted as prescribed by 
federal or state law. Separate minutes shall be kept of these meetings. The executive/closed 
minutes shall be reviewed in a timely manner and released to the public upon Board approval as 
soon as lawfully possible.  

20-17  Organizational Meeting 

An Organizational meeting will be held on the first Monday of December of each even numbered 
year. Prior to the meeting, any newly elected Member(s) shall take the oath of office as 
prescribed in state statutes. The purpose of the meeting is to elect the Board Chair, Vice-Chair 
and to set regularly scheduled meetings of the Board for that fiscal year. The County Clerk will 
open the meeting and preside over the meeting through the nominations of the Chair's position. 
In the event of the County Clerk's absence any other elected or appointed official of the County 
may preside. After the Chair has been chosen, the meeting will be handed over to the newly 
appointed Chair.  

20-18  Chair Duties 

The Chair shall be responsible for: 

1. Presiding over all meetings of the Board with exception to committees or appointed 
boards. 

2. Appointing, with Board approval, all Members to Board committees and affiliates. The 
Chair shall be an ex-officio member of Board committees. 

3. Appointing, with Board approval, members to public boards and commissions as are 
required by state statute. 

4. Presiding over the Board agenda process. The Chair may cancel a one regularly 
scheduled meeting per month if there are no agenda items that require Board action.  

5. Appointing the County Administrator and Department heads Supervisors under the 
Board’s authority and other officials as required by state statute with majority 
approval of the Board. 

6. Performing the duties as of Liquor Commissioner. 



Chapter 20 
COUNTY BOARD PROCEDURE 

 

20-19  Committees Duties 

The Chair, with Board approval, can appoint a committee as deemed necessary to conduct the 
thorough deliberation of any topic. The Chair will identify a committee chair and the members 
that constitute the committee. The committee will follow this Ordinance for guidance to conduct 
business with these specific differences: 

• The Committee Chair will provide public notices to the County Clerk to publicly post, 
• The Committee Chair will establish the agenda, 
• Minutes for a committee meeting will be taken by an individual designated by the 

committee, approved by the committee at the next committee meeting and then 
provided to the County Clerk for record keeping. 

• Motions in committee do not require a second. 

The Board Chair, or the Vice-Chair in Board Chair’s absence, shall be an ex-officio member of all 
committees – if not already a committee member. As an ex-officio member, the Board Chair’s 
presence shall only be counted to establish a quorum when the regular committee members 
present do not constitute a quorum. The Board Chair shall only have voting rights similar to the 
other committee members in two situations: 

1. When the Chair is necessary to constitute a quorum of the committee; or 
2. To break a tie vote amongst the committee members present. 

20-20  Amendment of the Annual Appropriations Resolution 

After adoption of the Annual Appropriations Resolution, amendments to increase appropriations 
as provided by such resolution shall require a two-thirds vote of the entire Board membership. 

20-21  Public Bidding 

Expenditures under $30,000 are not obligated to publicly be bid, but should seek two 
bids/quotes/estimates when possible. 

Expenditures made with funds controlled by the Board, in excess of $30,000.00 (value of trade-
ins to be included in purchase price), shall be competitively bid and received sealed. All bids shall 
be opened publicly, reviewed by the Board, and then voted upon by the Board to accept or reject 
any or all bid(s), even if funds were previously budgeted to be expended. If the vote fails, the 
Board will determine the next course of action. 

All County contracts/agreements shall require the following documents: 

• A certificate of insurance by the contractor listing the County as additionally insured,  
• A vendor hold-harmless agreement,  
• A contractor hold-harmless agreement and  
• Information on the prevailing wage.  

These documents shall be delivered to and stored with the County Clerk (for items over $30,000) 
or Department of origin (for items under $30,000). The Board/Administrator/Department Head 
shall review these documents no less than annually to ensure compliance.   

20-22  Claims for Service by Members 

The Members shall submit a quarterly report for all service and mileage for assigned meetings 
including dates and times to the County Clerk for delivery to the Board for approval. Although 



Chapter 20 
COUNTY BOARD PROCEDURE 

 

Members are welcome to attend all committee meetings, they may only claim Board meetings 
and other meetings they are assigned to by the Chair with Board approval. Claims submitted after 
the first month of the next fiscal year will not be accepted by the Board to approve. 

Members shall submit a quarterly report to the Clerk for a daily per diem payment, upon Board 
approval, for having attended assigned services. The report shall note type of service, date, and 
if out of county - mileage and additional expenses. Services include attendance of Board, 
committee, ad hoc committee and affiliate organization meetings, conferences, seminars, etc 
assigned by the Chair. Although all Members are welcome to attend any service, only those 
Members assigned by the Chair shall receive payment. Final approval of payment to Members 
shall be the responsibility of the Board to pay claims.  Claims submitted after the first month of 
the next fiscal year will not be accepted by the Board to approve. 

Members shall be entitled to a daily per diem payment of $60 from County funds for the 
following:  service attendance. Only one daily payment shall be paid even if multiple meetings 
occur on the same day. Beginning FY2025, newly elected or appointed Members shall be entitled 
to a daily per diem payment of $65.  

Services also include, but not limited to, attendance at the following Board and committee 
meetings as well as assigned organization gatherings: 

A. Attendance at any meeting(s) of the Board, 
B. Attendance at any Board committee meeting(s) to which the Member has been 

appointed by the Chair and approved by the Board, 
C. Attendance at any affiliate or other meeting(s) to which the Member has been appointed 

to by the Chair and approved by the Board. This includes, but is not limited to: 
• Blackhawk Hills Regional Council, 
• Business Employment Skills Team (BEST)/Workforce (County Chapter 460), 
• Community Mental Health Board (405 ILCS 20/, County Chapter 420), 
• County Advocate Boards (i.e., IACBM, ISACO, UCCI), 
• Carroll County Board of Health (55 ILCS 5/5-25012), 
• Carroll County Senior Services – Liaison, 
• Economic Development Boards (i.e., Jo/Carroll & Whiteside/Carroll - 20 ILCS 

655, etc.), 
• Emergency Telephone System Board (50 ILCS 750/ 15.4, County Chapter 410), 
• Hotel/Motel Tax Board (County Chapter 440), 
• Jo Carroll Enterprise Zone Board (20 ILCS 655/) 
• Jo Carroll Depot Local Redevelopment Authority (County Chapter 480), 
• JoDaviess Carroll Joint Action Solid Waste Agency (415 ILCS 10/3 & 15/4; 

County Chapter 450), 
• Tri-County Opportunity Council – Liaison, 
• Veterans Assistance Commission (55 ILCS 5/5, 330 ILCS 45/) – Liaison, and 
• Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone Management Org (20 ILCS 655/). 

In addition, Members shall be entitled to out-of-county mileage reimbursement, will be 
reimbursed at the current Internal Revenue Service rate, for travel outside of Carroll County by 
Members attending Chair appointed and Board approved organizational meetings. 



Chapter 20 
COUNTY BOARD PROCEDURE 

 

The Chair shall be compensated an additional $650.00 per quarter of each fiscal year. Beginning  
FY2025, the Chair will be reimbursed $1,500 per quarter of each fiscal year. 

20-23  Amendment of County Ordinances 

No county code, ordinance, rule shall be adopted, amended, or repealed except by a vote of a 
majority of the Members present at a Board meeting. 

20-24  Recordation of Resolutions 

All resolutions of a statutory nature, passed by the Board, shall be assigned an identification 
number to indicate its order of passage and location with the official Minutes Book. The County 
Clerk shall assign a number to all such resolutions after the regular meeting. The County Clerk 
shall maintain an index file of all numbers with a brief description of each resolution. 

 
 
 
 
Amended July 18, 2024   
 
___________________________________ 
Joseph J. Payette 
Carroll County Board Chair 
  
 
 Attest 
  
_________________________________ 
 Amy R. Buss 
 Carroll County Clerk 
 

Previously Amended June 17, 2021 and May 18, 2023  



 

 
 
 
 
July 9, 2024 
 
Carroll County 
County Board Chair  
301 N Main 
Mount Carroll, IL 61053 
 
 
The purpose of this letter is to provide fee proposals for the audit services for the years 
ended November 30, 2024, 2025 and 2026. Our fees, like those of other professional service 
firms, are based on the actual time spent by our staff on behalf of the Carroll County and 
Carroll County Circuit Clerk and are measured by standard hourly rates. These rates are 
based upon the experience levels of professionals assigned to your engagement.   
 
Our fee estimates are based to a large extent on the quality, timeliness, and accuracy of the 
work papers and records that you and your staff prepare.  We will prepare a detailed list of 
expected work papers which you will need to prepare before beginning the audits. The 
following are our proposed fees for the upcoming years which includes a market adjustment 
in the CPA profession: 
 
Service FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 
County Audit -     
Financial Statement Audit* $40,000 $43,600 $47,550 
Single Audit (1 major program), if 
needed 

 
7,000 

 
7,350 

 
7,500 

    
Circuit Clerk Audit -     
Financial Statement Audit $11,500 $12,350 $13,400 

*Our fee includes the following services:  Audit of basic financial statements, cash to accrual conversion, 
annual depreciation maintenance, CYEFR, Comptroller report preparation and Wipfli technology fee. 

The fee for the Circuit Clerk assumes the County will report on the Schedule of Accountabilities. 

 
Our fee estimate represents an increase based on the average amount of actual time spent 
over the past 3 years and is based on conducting a “normal” audit of the accounting records 
of the County. It also presumes work paper preparation and other assistance from your 
staff, will be provided as needed. We will coordinate this work with the key members of 
management. The above fee would not apply to additional work required by regulatory 
agencies, changes in professional accounting standards, or similar unforeseen 
circumstances such as significant changes to the County’s state and federal grants. Should 

403 East Third Street 815 626 1277 
Sterling, IL 61081 wipfli.com 
 



2 

 

we encounter circumstances that would affect this fee, that were not in existence at the 
time this proposal was written, we would discuss the circumstance with you before 
proceeding. 
 
In addition, the quote shall contain a maximum fee for the fiscal year in accordance with 
the detailed description of services required. Audit firms have the flexibility to propose 
whatever method of compensation that would be to the best mutual benefit of the County 
and the audit firm. An equitable adjustment in the proposed fee shall be negotiated if the 
costs or the time required for the performance of the audit service is increased or 
decreased pursuant to a change in scope of the audit requested by the County or 
provisions to the effect that in the event disclosures in the audit indicate extraordinary 
circumstances which warrant more intensive and detailed services, the firm shall provide 
all pertinent facts relative to the extraordinary circumstances together with the firm’s 
estimate of the cost of additional services to the County. 
 
If you agree with the terms of this proposal, please sign below.  For each of the respective 
audit years noted above, we will also submit an arrangement letter for your approval.  If you 
have questions regarding our services, please feel free to contact Matt Schueler or Josh 
Faivre at 815-626-1277, or by email to mschueler@wipfli.com or jfaivre@wipfli.com. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Wipfli LLP 
 

RESPONSE: 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Carroll County, Illinois. 
 
 
 ______       
County Official                                                             Date 
 
 

mailto:mschueler@wipfli.com










































































 
 

 
 

COUNTY MATCHING FUND RESOLUTION 
 

 WHEREAS, The County of Carroll is preparing for the Cost sharing of the 

Reconstruction of Ideal Road, Section 20-00102-00-PV, and, 

 

 WHEREAS, in compliance with the aforementioned project, it is necessary  

for the County to allocate the funds intended to pay for the County’s share of the cost of 

this improvement, and, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that there is hereby identified the 

adjusted sum of Six Hundred Thousand Dollars ($600,000.00) of budgeted County 

Matching Funds, thereof as may be necessary to pay the amount of cost for Construction 

and easement purchases, and, 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County agrees to pass a supplemental  
 
resolution to provide necessary funds for its share of the cost of this improvement if the  
 
amount appropriated herein proves to be insufficient to cover said cost. 
 
 
 
 
 I,    Amy R. Buss  , County Clerk in and for said County, in the State of Illinois,  
 hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution  

adopted by the County Board of Carroll  County, at its  
 
Date:_________________________ Meeting held at Mount Carroll, Illinois. 

 
 
            _______________________________________ 
       Carroll County Clerk 
{ S E A L } 



 
 

 
 

COUNTY MATCHING FUND RESOLUTION 
 

 WHEREAS, The County of Carroll is preparing for the Cost sharing of the 

Reconstruction of Ideal Road, Section 20-00102-00-PV, and, 

 

 WHEREAS, in compliance with the aforementioned project, it is necessary  

for the County to allocate the funds intended to pay for the County’s share of the cost of 

this improvement, and, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that there is hereby identified the 

sum of Four Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($4,750,000.00) of budgeted 

County Matching Funds, thereof as may be necessary to pay the amount of $3,644,298.64 

that Federal funding will reimburse and of the County’s share of $1,105,701.36 cost for 

Construction and easement purchases, and, 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County agrees to pass a supplemental  
 
resolution to provide necessary funds for its share of the cost of this improvement if the  
 
amount appropriated herein proves to be insufficient to cover said cost. 
 
 
 
 
 I,    Amy R. Buss  , County Clerk in and for said County, in the State of Illinois,  
 hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution  

adopted by the County Board of Carroll  County, at its  
 
Date:_________________________ Meeting held at Mount Carroll, Illinois. 

 
 
            _______________________________________ 
       Carroll County Clerk 
{ S E A L } 



July 18 2024 

Attention: 
Sara Renkes 
Carroll County Engineer 
10735 Mill Road 
Mt. Carroll IL 61053 
 
 
Subject: Support for Bridge Project on Army Depot Road 

 
On behalf of the Carroll County Board, I am writing to express our full support for the proposed bridge 
project on Army Depot Road. This project is of utmost importance to our community, as it addresses 
critical infrastructure needs that impact the safety and efficiency of our transportation network. 

The Army Depot Road bridge is a vital link for our county, serving as the only route for both civilian and 
commercial traffic to the Savanna Industrial Park. Its improvement is essential for ensuring the safe 
passage of vehicles, reducing the risk of accidents, and preventing costly disruptions to local and regional 
traffic flow. The current state of the bridge, with its aging structure and increasing wear, poses significant 
concerns that must be addressed promptly. 

The proposed project aligns with our commitment to infrastructure development and public safety. By 
investing in the necessary repairs and upgrades, we can extend the lifespan of the bridge, enhance its 
structural integrity, and support the economic vitality of our region. This project will also contribute to 
the resilience of our transportation system, which is crucial for emergency response, daily commutes, 
and the movement of goods and services. 

We recognize the financial challenges associated with infrastructure projects and greatly appreciate the 
state's role in providing the necessary funding and support through the RISE Grant. We are confident 
that, with state assistance, we can achieve a higher standard of safety and reliability for the Army Depot 
Road bridge. 

Thank you for your attention to this critical matter. We look forward to your positive response and 
continued partnership in enhancing the infrastructure of Carroll County. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Joseph Payette 
Carroll County Board Chairman 









































State of Illinois 
DEPARTMENT ore TRANSPORTATION 

Bureau of Local Roads & Streets 
SPECIAL PROVISION 

FOR 
LOCAi_ QUALITY ASSURANCE/ QUALITY MANAGEMENT QC/QA 

Effective: January 1, 2022 

LR1030-2 

Replace the first five paragraphs of Article 1030.06 of the Standard Specifications with the 
following: 

"1030.06 Quality Management Program. The Quality Management Program (QMP) will be 
Quality Control/ Quality Assurance (QC/QA) according to the following." 

Delete Article 1030.06(d)(1) of the Standard Specifications. 

Revise Article 1030.09(g)(3) of the Standard Specifications to read: 

"(3) If core testing is the density verification method, the Contractor shall provide personnel 
and equipment to collect density verification cores for the Engineer. Core locations 
will be determined by the Engineer· following the document "Hot-Mix Asphalt QC/QA 
Procedure for Determining Random Density Locations" at density verification intervals 
defined in Ariicle 1030.09(b). After the Engineer identifies a density verification 
location and prior to opening to traffic, the. Contractor shall cut a 4 in. (100 mm) 
diameter core. With the approval of the Engineer, the cores may be cut at a later time." 

Revise Article 1030.09(h)(2) of the Standard Specifications to read: 

"(2) After final rolling and prior to paving subsequent lifts, the Engineer will identify the 
random density verification test locations. Cores or nuclear density gauge testing will 
be used for density verification. The method used for density verification will be as 
selected below. 

�-------------·�--"� 

ISi 

Densitv Verification Method 
Cores 
Nuclear Density Gauge (Correlated when 
paving> 3,000 tons per mixture) 

Density verification test locations will be determined according to the document "Hot
Mix Asphalt QC/QA Procedure for- Determining Random Density Locations". The 
density testing interval for paving wider than or equal to 3 ft (1 m) will be 0.5 miles (800 
m) for lift thicknesses of 3 in. (75 111111) or less and 0,2 miles (320 m) for lift thicknesses
greater than 3 in. (75 mm). The density testing interval for paving less than 3 ft (1 m)
wide will be 1 mile (1,600 m). If a day's paving will be less than the prescribed density
testing interval, the length of the day's paving will be the interval for that day. The
density testing interval for mixtures used for patching will be 50 patches with a
minimum of one test per mixture per project.

If core testing is the density verification method, the Engineer will witness the 
Contractor coring, and secure and take possession of all density samples at the 

9 



































































































geoff
Typewritten Text
5-29-24



NO OVERHAUL HAS BEEN COMPUTED AND NONE SHALL BE PAID FOR FROM ANY SOURCE.

OTHERWISE NOTED IN THE PLANS OR SPECIAL PROVISIONS.

AND 501.05 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, WITHOUT ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION, UNLESS

STRUCTURES) WITHIN THE RIGHT OF WAY SHALL BE REMOVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 501.04

EXISTING STRUCTURES (INCLUDING FOUNDATIONS, WALLS, CISTERNS, WELLS, OR OTHER UNDERGROUND

UTILITIES IS TO BE DETERMINED IN THE FIELD BY THE CONTRACTOR.

IN THE PLANS ARE NOT TO BE TAKEN AS EXACT. EXACT LOCATION OF ALL FIELD TILES AND

THE LOCATION OF EXISTING FIELD TILES AND ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITIES AS SHOWN

OF THE OWNER AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

PROPERTY DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED TO THE SATISFACTION

OPERATIONS AS OUTLINED IN ARTICLE 107.39 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. ANY UTILITY

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING UTILITY PROPERTY DURING CONSTRUCTION

A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS ADVANCE NOTICE IS REQUIRED FOR NON-EMERGENCY WORK.

SHALL BE REPLACED AT THE EXPENSE OF THE CONTRACTOR.

MARKERS, SECTION OR SUBSECTION MONUMENTS, UNLESS REFERENCED, DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR

SURVEYOR, OR AGENT HAS WITNESSED OR OTHERWISE REFERENCED THEIR LOCATION.  ANY PROPERTY

ALL PROPERTY MARKERS, MONUMENTS, AND RIGHT OF WAY PINS UNTIL THE OWNER, AN AUTHORIZED

BEFORE SUCH MONUMENTS ARE REMOVED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT AND CAREFULLY PRESERVE

WHERE SECTION OR SUBSECTION MONUMENTS ARE ENCOUNTERED, THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS INCLUDE:

THE UTILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS OR IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT

AT THE UNIT PRICE BID FOR THE WORK.

SCOPE OF THE WORK, HOWEVER, THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE PAID FOR THE QUANTITY ACTUALLY FURNISHED

MATERIALS.  SUCH VARIATIONS SHALL NOT BE CAUSE FOR ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION FOR A CHANGE IN

CONSTRUCTION AND MAKE NECESSARY APPROVED ADJUSTMENTS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OR ORDERING OF

VARIATIONS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY EXISTING DIMENSIONS AND DETAILS AFFECTING NEW

PLAN DIMENSIONS AND DETAILS RELATIVE TO EXISTING PLANS ARE SUBJECT TO NOMINAL CONSTRUCTION

GENERAL NOTES

SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO EARTH EXCAVATION (SPECIAL).

REMOVAL OF STUMPS, PIPE CULVERTS, BRUSH AND TREES LESS THAN 6 INCH IN DIAMETER 

CA 10 AND SHALL BE PLACED AND SHAPED AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS BY THE CONTRACTOR.

AGGREGATE SHOULDERS, TYPE B SHALL MEET IDOT COARSE AGGREGATE GRADATION CA 6 OR 

SHEET  1  OF  1  SHEETS

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

 

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SEED ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS.

INCLUDING TEMPORARY STOCKPILING OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION.

REMOVING ANY MATERIAL FROM THE PROJECT OR INITIATING ANY EARTH MOVING ACTIVITIES, 

ALL BORROW/WASTE/USE SITES MUST BE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO 

CODE NO. ITEM UNIT QUANTITY

CU YD

25100630 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET SQ YD

28000250 TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL SEEDING POUND

28000305 TEMPORARY DITCH CHECKS FOOT

28000400 PERIMETER EROSION BARRIER FOOT

AGGREGATE SHOULDERS, TYPE B

* X2020410 EARTH EXCAVATION (SPECIAL) CU YD

X7010216 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, (SPECIAL) L SUM 1

5

PRIOR TO THE REMOVAL. 

CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES, CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL TREE REMOVAL WITH THE ENGINEER 

TO 15 UNITS DIAMETER).  SPECIAL CARE SHALL BE TAKEN TO ONLY REMOVE TREES NECESSARY TO 

PREVENT GRADING AND SHAPING OF DITCHES, SHALL BE REMOVED AND PAID FOR AS TREE REMOVAL (6 

TREES GREATER THAN 6 INCH IN DIAMETER WITHIN THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION, AND DETERMINED TO 

EM: JASON.WILLIAMS@BRIGHTSPEED.COM

PH: 336-707-4568

ATTN: JASON WILLIAMS

BRIGHT SPEED

EM: JOHN.LOUIS@WINTECHNOLOGY.COM

PH: 715-838-4012

ATTN: JOHN LOUIS

WISCONSIN INDEPENDENT NETWORK

SPECIAL PROVISIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THESE PLANS OR SPECIAL PROVISIONS.

ADOPTED JANUARY 1, 2021 AND LATEST SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AND RECURRING

TRANSPORTATION (IDOT) STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION

ALL WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF

SHALL NOTIFY THE RESPECTIVE UTILITIES TO MAKE THE NECESSARY ADJUSTMENTS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL NOT BE INCLUDED IN THE CONTRACT. THE CONTRACTOR

ALL UTILITY POLES, GAS PIPES, ETC. IN THE WAY OF THE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE MOVED BY THE

MUST BE A COHESIVE SOIL CAPABLE OF SUPPORTING VEGETATION AND APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

THE FINAL TOP FOUR INCHES OF SOIL IN ANY RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR

CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS NEAR THEM TO PREVENT DAMAGE.

ARE NOT TO BE TAKEN AS EXACT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE SPECIAL CARE WHEN CONDUCTING

THE LOCATION AND ELEVATION OF THE VARIOUS UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS

20400800 FURNISHED EXCAVATION CU YD 92

20800150 TRENCH BACKFILL 88

436

9

16

102

28100129 STONE RIPRAP, CLASS B5 SQ YD

30300112 AGGREGATE SUBGRADE IMPROVEMENT  12" SQ YD 49

44201696 CLASS D PATCHES, TYPE IV, 4" SQ YD 49

48101200 TON 4

50104400 CONCRETE HEADWALL REMOVAL EACH 3

542A1069 PIPE CULVERTS, CLASS A, TYPE 2  24" FOOT 51

54213669 PRECAST REINFORCED CONCRETE FLARED END SECTIONS  24" EACH 2

X1200050 BOX CULVERT REMOVAL FOOT 45

X2501020 SEEDING, CLASS 2A (SPECIAL) ACRE 0.09

*

*

*

12

MANHOLE, SPECIAL - 4' X 4' EACH 1*

* INDICATES A SPECIAL PROVISION OR DETAIL

GENERAL NOTES  AND  SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

XXXXXXX1

*

CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT L SUM 1* Z0013798

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 

N
o
t
e
s
 

&
 

S
u

m
m
a
r
y
 
o
f
 

Q
u
a
n
t
i
t
i
e
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:1

7
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 2



EARTH WORK TABLE

SCHEDULE OF QUANTITIES

LOCATION

TOTAL

25%

& WASTE

SHRINKAGE

ADJUSTED FOR

EXCAVATION

EARTH

SHORTAGE (-)

OR

WASTE (+)

BALANCE

EARTHWORK

CU YD CU YD CU YD CU YD

-92

FILL (-)

REQUIRED

EMBANKMENT

12 9

LORAN RD. CULVERT REPLACEMENT

CU YD

20400800

EXCAVATION

FURNISHED

92

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

TRENCH BACKFILL

LORAN RD.

LT. & RT. STA. 10+00

CU YD

88

88

EXIST. CULVERT REMOVAL &

PROPOSED CULVERT

20800150

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

ACRE

LT. STA. 9+56 TO 10+47

RT. STA. 9+25 TO 10+75

0.04

0.09

0.05

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

25100630

LT. STA. 9+56 TO 10+47

RT. STA. 9+25 TO 10+75

194

436

242

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

SQ YD

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

28000250

LT. STA. 9+56 TO 10+47

RT. STA. 9+25 TO 10+75

POUND

TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL SEEDING

100 LBS / ACRE4

5

9

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

28000305

FOOT

TEMPORARY DITCH CHECKS

RT. STA. 9+75

RT. STA. 10+25

8

8

16

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

28000400

LT. STA. 9+54 TO 9+96

102

PERIMETER EROSION BARRIER

FOOT

LT. STA. 10+04 TO 10+50

50

52

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

SQ YD

5

5

28100129

STONE RIPRAP, CLASS B5

LT. STA. 10+00

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

SQ YD

49

49

30300112

AGGREGATE SUBGRADE IMPROVEMENT 12"

STA. 9+90 TO 10+10

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

SQ YD

49

49

44201696

STA. 9+90 TO 10+10

CLASS D PATCHES, TYPE IV, 4"

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

48101200

LT. STA. 9+90 TO 10+10

TON

2

2

AGGREGATE SHOULDERS, TYPE B

RT. STA. 9+90 TO 10+10

4

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

50104400

CONCRETE HEADWALL REMOVAL

EACH

1

1

LT. STA. 9+93

RT. STA. 10+00

LT. STA. 10+07

3

1

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

542A1069

FOOT

38

13

PIPE CULVERTS, CLASS A, TYPE 2  24"

LT. & RT. STA. 10+00

LT. STA. 10+00

51

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

54213669

EACH

1

1RT. STA. 10+00

2

END SECTIONS  24"
PRECAST REINFORCED CONCRETE FLARED

LT. STA. 10+00

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

FOOT

45

45

BOX CULVERT REMOVAL

STA. 10+00

SEEDING, CLASS 2A (SPECIAL)

*X1200050

*X2501020

SCHEDULE  OF  QUANTITIES

SHEET  1  OF  1  SHEETS

X2020410

(SPECIAL)

EXCAVATION

EARTH

STATION REMARKS

PROJECT TOTAL

LORAN RD.

FOOT

1

1

MANHOLE, SPECIAL - 4' X 4'

LT. STA. 10+00

               

   
   

   

101

XXXXXXX1

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 

Q
u
a
n
t
i
t
i
e
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:1

8
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 3



SHEET  1  OF  1  SHEETS

BAW

MRL

 

GBG

GFS

* *

CONCRETE BUILDING BRICK OR CLASS SI CONCRETE.

* THE WALL ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE MADE WITH

 

6" SHORT TO ALLOW FOR FIELD ADJUSTMENTS.

THE HEIGHT OF THE BOX  MAY BE CONSTRUCTED

 

SEGMENTAL SECTIONS.

THE SIDE WALL MAY BE BUILT AS PRECAST

 

SHALL BE USED THROUGHOUT.

CLASS SI CONCRETE OR PRECAST CONCRETE

ON 8" CTRS.

NO. 4 REBAR

5
'-
0
"

5'-0"

PLAN

SECTION A-A

A A
4'-0"6"

C
L

"
2

1
1

6"

6" CONC. SLAB

3" SAND CUSHION

OR 6" PRECAST W/ 

6" P0URED (CLASS SI) 

MANHOLE, SPECIAL - 4' x 4'

RIM ELEV. 867.13

OPEN LID (OR EQUIV.).

NEENAH CAT NO R-6116 W/ TYPE G

FL ELEV. 863.54

FL ELEV. 856.13

TYPE 2  24"

PIPE CULVERT, CLASS A,

TYPE 2  24"

PIPE CULVERT, CLASS A,

1
1
'

NOTES:

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

1:
2 

& 
VAR.

1:4

1:4
1:3VAR.

1:3 &

TYPICAL SECTION

STA. 9+90 - 10+10

11.4'+- 10.8'+-

22.2'+-

33' 33'

10' 10'

1.6'+- 1.5'+-

CLASS D PATCHES, TYPE IV,  4"

AGGREGATE SUBGRADE IMPROVEMENT  12"

AGGREGATE SHOULDERS, TYPE B

TYPICAL  SECTION  AND  DETAILS

P
E

R
M
. 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

T
E

M
P
. 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

48'

53'

 

BY THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.

BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, ADOPTED JANUARY 1, 2022

OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND

BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 602

EXCEPT AS NOTED HEREON MANHOLE SPECIAL SHALL

 

OR PRECAST.

THE MANHOLE SPECIAL SHALL BE CAST IN-PLACE

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

T
y
p

S
e
c
t
-

D
e
t
a
i
l
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:1

9
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 4



20 40 60

870

875

860

865

870

875

860

865

ROAD PROFILE

EXISTING

CONCRETE  BOX CULVERT

EXISTING   3'x3'

FL. 860.24

FL. 864.10

LORAN  RD.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

±
2
2
'

±
1
1
.0
'

±
1
0
.8
'

6
6
'

±
3
3
'

±
3
3
'

+
9
0

+
1
0

CLASS B5

STONE RIPRAP,

FL. @ END -  855.56

FLARED END SECTION - 24"

PRECAST REINF. CONCRETE 

FL. @ END -  864.86

FLARED END SECTION - 24"

PRECAST REINF. CONCRETE

FL. 868.57

STA. 9+25

DITCH BEGINS
FL. 868.80

STA. 10+75

DITCH ENDS

INV. (24" N) - 856.13

INV. (24" S) - 863.54

RIM ELEV. - 867.13

20.5' LT.

MANHOLE, SPECIAL - 4'X4'

+
6
0

+
4
0

2
0
'

(REMOVE)

BOX CULVERT - 10+00

EXISTING 3'x3' CONCRETE

(REMOVE)

EXIST. CONC. HEADWALLS

(REMOVE)

 PLAN  AND  PROFILE

BENCH MARK #400:(NOT SHOWN)

DESCRIPTION

869.86

869.78

872.67

ELEV.E

2353261.89

2353490.91

2353858.611989770.25

1989699.50

NSTAPT #

1989757.96 " IP w/CAP8
5

" IP w/CAP8
5

DESCRIPTION

866.92

868.70

876.75

ELEV.E

2353125.38

2353463.90

2353747.771989797.16

1989760.12

NSTABM #

1989719.86400

401

402

25.86' LT. 13+02.49

65.27' LT. 11+88.85

" IP w/CAP8
5

SHANNON RTE. - VERTICAL CONTROL POINTS

1

2

3

RR SPIKE IN PP

RR SPIKE IN PP

EXISTING STRUCTURE:S.N. NONE

LORAN RD. - HORIZONTAL CONTROL POINTS

22.17' LT. 6+98.31

30.70' RT. 9+29.06

30.74' RT. 5+67.08

30.05' LT. 9+02.33

RR SPIKE IN PP

CP #1

CP #2

(NOT SHOWN)

BM #402

BM #401

ELEV. 876.75

30.74' RT OF STA. 5+67.08

RR SPIKE IN PP BENCH MARK #401:

ELEV. 868.70

30.05' LT OF STA. 9+02.33

RR SPIKE IN PP BENCH MARK #402:

ELEV. 866.92

65.27' LT OF STA. 11+88.85

RR SPIKE IN PP

CP #3

STA. 10+00. NO SKEW. NO SALVAGE.

3'x3' CONCRETE BOX CULVERT

DS FL. (18.5' LT.) - 863.54

US FL. (18.5' RT.) - 864.68

38 FT. @ 3.00%

PIPE CULVERTS, CLASS A, TYPE 2 24"

38 FT. @ 3.00%

PIPE CULVERTS, CLASS A, TYPE 2 24"

STA. 10+04 TO 10+50

PERIMETER EROSION BARRIER
STA. 9+54 TO 9+96

PERIMETER EROSION BARRIER

CHECK - 10+25

TEMPORARY DITCH

CHECK - 9+75

TEMPORARY DITCH

CLASS D PATCH, TYPE IV  4"

TYPE B (TYP. BOTH SIDES)

AGGREGATE SHOULDERS,

EXIST. CONC. HEADWALL

(REMOVE)

53' LT.

9+60

33' LT.

9+60

53' LT.

10+40

33' LT.

10+40

33' LT

9+90

33' LT

10+10

48' LT.

9+90

48' LT.

10+10
DS FL. (35.5' LT.) - 855.74

US FL. (22.5' LT.) - 856.13

13 FT. @ 3.00%

PIPE CULVERTS, CLASS A, TYPE 2 24"

TEMP.   EASEMENT

EASEMENT

PERM.

SHEET  1  OF  1  SHEETS

N

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

0

SCALE IN FEET

TYPE IV - 4"

CLASS D PATCH,

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
P
l
a
n
a
n
d

P
r
o
f
i
l
e
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:3

0
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 5

 7

 8

P
T
 
S
ta
 
8

+
6
2
.1

3

 9  10+00  11

P
C
 
S
ta
 
1
1

+
5
8
.3

8

 12

 13

P
I 

S
ta
 
1
2
+

9
1
.3

8

E
L
E

V
: 

8
6
9
.5

8

S
T

A
: 

0
9
+

9
0
.0

0

E
L
E

V
: 

8
6
9
.5

2

S
T

A
: 

1
0
+

1
0
.0

0

7+00 7+50 8+00 8+50 9+00 9+50 10+00 10+50 11+00 11+50 12+00 12+507+00 7+50 8+00 8+50 9+00 9+50 10+00 10+50 11+00 11+50 12+00 12+50

8
7
3
.9

1

8
7
3
.4

9

8
7
3
.0

9

8
7
2
.7

2

8
7
2
.3

3

8
7
1
.8

9

8
7
1
.4

2

8
7
0
.9

7

8
7
0
.5

9

8
7
0
.2

6

8
6
9
.9

4

8
6
9
.7

1

8
6
9
.5

1

8
6
9
.5

5

8
6
9
.5

9

8
6
9
.6

7

8
6
9
.7

5

8
6
9
.8

4

8
6
9
.9

7

8
7
0
.1

4

8
7
0
.3

3

8
7
0
.5

4

8
7
0
.7

8

8
7
1
.0

4



870

875

860

865

870

875

860

865

ROAD PROFILE

EXISTING

CONCRETE  BOX CULVERT

EXISTING   3'x3'

FL. 860.24

FL. 864.10

(REMOVE)

FL. 868.57

STA. 9+25

DITCH BEGINS
FL. 868.80

STA. 10+75

DITCH ENDS

FL. 864.86

END SECTION

+
6
0

2
0
'

+
4
0

STA. 9+75 - 866.77

STA. 9+50 - 867.67

DITCH ELEVATIONS

STA. 10+50 - 867.94

STA. 10+25 - 867.08

DITCH ELEVATIONS

±
2
2
'

±
1
1
.0
'

±
1
0
.8
'

6
6
'

±
3
3
'

±
3
3
'

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

20 40 60

LORAN  RD.

DESCRIPTION

869.86

869.78

872.67

ELEV.E

2353261.89

2353490.91

2353858.611989770.25

1989699.50

NSTAPT #

1989757.96 " IP w/CAP8
5

" IP w/CAP8
5

DESCRIPTION

866.92

868.70

876.75

ELEV.E

2353125.38

2353463.90

2353747.771989797.16

1989760.12

NSTABM #

1989719.86400

401

402

25.86' LT. 13+02.49

65.27' LT. 11+88.85

" IP w/CAP8
5

SHANNON RTE. - VERTICAL CONTROL POINTS

1

2

3

RR SPIKE IN PP

RR SPIKE IN PP

LORAN RD. - HORIZONTAL CONTROL POINTS

22.17' LT. 6+98.31

30.70' RT. 9+29.06

30.74' RT. 5+67.08

30.05' LT. 9+02.33

RR SPIKE IN PP (NOT SHOWN)

BENCH MARK #400:(NOT SHOWN)

ELEV. 876.75

30.74' RT OF STA. 5+67.08

RR SPIKE IN PP BENCH MARK #401:

ELEV. 868.70

30.05' LT OF STA. 9+02.33

RR SPIKE IN PP BENCH MARK #402:

ELEV. 866.92

65.27' LT OF STA. 11+88.85

RR SPIKE IN PP

CP #1

BM #401

CP #2

BM #402

CP #3

EXISTING STRUCTURE:S.N. NONE

STA. 10+00. NO SKEW. NO SALVAGE.

3'x3' CONCRETE BOX CULVERT

37 FT. @ 3.00%

PIPE CULVERTS, CLASS A, TYPE 2 24"

DRAINAGE  AND  GRADING  PLAN

STA. 9+54 TO 9+96

PERIMETER EROSION BARRIER

CHECK - 10+25

TEMPORARY DITCH

CHECK - 9+75

TEMPORARY DITCH

53' LT.

9+60

33' LT.

9+60

53' LT.

10+40

33' LT.

10+40

STA. 10+04 TO 10+50

PERIMETER EROSION BARRIER

48' LT.

9+90

48' LT.

10+10

33' LT

9+90
33' LT

10+10

TEMP.   EASEMENT

CLASS B5

STONE RIPRAP,

EASEMENT

PERM.

SHEET  1  OF  1  SHEETS

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

0

SCALE IN FEET

TYPE IV - 4"

CLASS D PATCH,

N

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
P
l
a
n
a
n
d

P
r
o
f
i
l
e
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:3

1
 
A

M
=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 6

845

846

847

848

849

850
851

852

853

854

855

856

857

858
859

859

860
861
862

8
6
2

863

863

8
6
3

864

864

864

865

865

865

866

866

867

867

868

86
8

869

869

869

869

870

870

870

871

871

871

872

872

8
73

873

874

874

875

 7

 8

P
T
 
S
ta
 
8

+
6
2
.1

3

 9  10+00  11

P
C
 
S
ta
 
1
1

+
5
8
.3

8

 12

 13

P
I 

S
ta
 
1
2
+

9
1
.3

8

865

860

868

868

868

868

870

860

865

855

E
L
E

V
: 

8
6
9
.5

8

S
T

A
: 

0
9
+

9
0
.0

0

E
L
E

V
: 

8
6
9
.5

2

S
T

A
: 

1
0
+

1
0
.0

0

7+00 7+50 8+00 8+50 9+00 9+50 10+00 10+50 11+00 11+50 12+00 12+507+00 7+50 8+00 8+50 9+00 9+50 10+00 10+50 11+00 11+50 12+00 12+50

8
7
3
.9

1

8
7
3
.4

9

8
7
3
.0

9

8
7
2
.7

2

8
7
2
.3

3

8
7
1
.8

9

8
7
1
.4

2

8
7
0
.9

7

8
7
0
.5

9

8
7
0
.2

6

8
6
9
.9

4

8
6
9
.7

1

8
6
9
.5

1

8
6
9
.5

5

8
6
9
.5

9

8
6
9
.6

7

8
6
9
.7

5

8
6
9
.8

4

8
6
9
.9

7

8
7
0
.1

4

8
7
0
.3

3

8
7
0
.5

4

8
7
0
.7

8

8
7
1
.0

4



00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

2525

2525

3030

3030

3535

3535

4040

4040

4545

4545

5050

5050

5555

5555

6060

6060

870

875

865

870

875

865

CROSS  SECTIONS - LORAN RD.

9+00 9+00

870

875

865

9+25

870

875

865

9+50

870

875

865

9+25

870

875

865

9+50

7

CUT AREA = 1.71

FILL AREA = 0.00

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

SCALE: 1" = 5'-0" SHEET NO. 1 OF 3 SHEETS STA. 9+00.00 TO STA. 9+50.00

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

X
S
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:3

1
 
A

M
=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 7

870.59

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

869.34

870.26

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

868.57

869.94

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
. E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

867.78

1:4 1:3

867.67



00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

2525

2525

3030

3030

3535

3535

4040

4040

4545

4545

5050

5050

5555

5555

6060

6060

870

875

865

870

875

865

9+75 9+75

870

875

865

870

875

865

870

875

865

870

875

865

10+00

10+25

10+00

10+25

860 860

860

860

860

860

855 855

CROSS  SECTIONS - LORAN RD.

CUT AREA = 3.56

FILL AREA = 0.57

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

CUT AREA = 3.45

FILL AREA = 0.00

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

CUT AREA = 0.08

FILL AREA = 68.81

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

CUT AREA = 0.29

FILL AREA = 19.02

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

CUT AREA = 0.00

FILL AREA = 12.66

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

CUT AREA = 0.00

FILL AREA = 9.76

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

STA. 9+90

PERM. EASEMENT BEGIN

STA. 9+60

TEMP. EASEMENT START

STA. 10+40

TEMP. EASEMENT ENDS

STA. 10+10

PERM. EASEMENT ENDS

SCALE: 1" = 5'-0" SHEET NO. 2 OF 3 SHEETS STA. 9+75.00 TO STA. 10+25.00 

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

X
S
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:3

2
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 8

869.71

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

866.91

1:3

866.77

1:4

1:2

1:4

T
E

M
P
. 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

869.51

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

1:4

863.40

864.86

861.36

1:4

863.54

856.13
855.56

864.68

867.13

858.92

855.74

1:2

PIPE CULVERT, CLASS A, 24" - 38 FT. @ 3.00
%

P
E

R
M
. 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

T
E

M
P
. 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

24" - 13 FT. @ 3.00%
PIPE CULVERT, CLASS A,

869.55

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

867.22

1:3

867.08

1:4

1:2

1:4

T
E

M
P
. 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T



00

00

55

55

1010

1010

1515

1515

2020

2020

2525

2525

3030

3030

3535

3535

4040

4040

4545

4545

5050

5050

5555

5555

6060

6060

870

875

865

870

875

865

870

875

865

870

875

865

870

875

865

870

875

865

10+75

11+00

10+75

11+00

10+50 10+50

CROSS  SECTIONS - LORAN RD.

CUT AREA = 4.74

FILL AREA = 0.00

DESIGN EARTHWORK:

SCALE: 1" = 5'-0" SHEET NO. 3 OF 3 SHEETS STA. 10+50.00 TO STA. 11+00.00 

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

X
S
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:3

2
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 9

869.59

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

C
L
E

A
R
 
Z

O
N

E

868.29

1:3

867.94

1:4

869.67

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

868.80

869.75

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 
R
.O
.W
.

869.23



STANDARDS

SHEET 2 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:3

4
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 10



STANDARDS

SHEET 3 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:4

4
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 11



STANDARDS

SHEET 4 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

2
:5

4
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 12



STANDARDS

SHEET 1 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

3
:0

3
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 13



STANDARDS

SHEET 5 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

3
:1

4
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 14



STANDARDS

SHEET 6 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

3
:2

3
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 15



STANDARDS

SHEET 7 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

3
:3

3
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 16



STANDARDS

SHEET 8 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

3
:4

2
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 17



STANDARDS

SHEET 9 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

3
:5

2
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 18



STANDARDS

SHEET 10 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

4
:0

1
 
A

M
=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 19



STANDARDS

SHEET 11 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

4
:1

1
 
A

M
=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 20



STANDARDS

SHEET 12 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

4
:2

2
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 21



STANDARDS

SHEET 13 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

4
:3

3
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 22



STANDARDS

SHEET 14 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

4
:4

3
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 23



STANDARDS

SHEET 15 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

4
:5

3
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 24



STANDARDS

SHEET 16 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

5
:0

2
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 25



STANDARDS

SHEET 17 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

5
:1

2
 

A
M

=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 26



STANDARDS

SHEET 18 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

5
:2

1
 
A

M
=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 27



STANDARDS

SHEET 19 OF 19

2
0
2
4

T
h
i
s
 
d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
p
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
w
r
i
t
t
e
n
 
p
e
r

m
i
s
s
i
o
n
.
 
 

©
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
i
l
l
e
t
t
,
 
H

o
f

m
a
n
n
 

&
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.

F
I
L

E
 

=
 
S
:\

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S
\
2
0
2
2
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_

C
A

C
\

D
E

S
I
G

N
\

C
A

D
_
S

H
E

E
T

S
\

L
o
r
a
n
 

R
d
\
1
6
8
4

D
2
2
_
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
.d

g
n

1
0
:0

5
:3

1
 
A

M
=
 
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4

P
R
I
N

T
_

O
R

G
A

N
I
Z

E
R
_

B
W
.p
l
t
c
f
g

REVISION DATE BY REMARKS
MAH

MAH
DRAWN

GFS

GFS

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

NO.
SECTION COUNTY

ILLINOIS

TOTAL

SHEETS

SHEET

NO.RTE.

TWP.

WHA# 1684D22

         22-13707-00-BR CARROLL

 
STATION 10+00

LORAN  ROAD  CULVERT  REPLACEMENT

CARROLL COUNTY
28 28



CHAPTER 745 

GUEST HOME LICENSE ORDINANCE 
745-1  Purpose and Applicability 

The purpose of this Ordinance shall be to control and regulate the use of property for transient 
lodging when said property cannot otherwise be permanently zoned with a lodging use. The 
control shall be an attempt to mitigate unwanted nuisance activities, ensure safe clean locations 
for guests as well as simplifying the process of application for residents seeking to offer guest 
homes to the public. This ordinance shall apply to all areas within the jurisdiction of Carroll 
County, except those municipalities that have enacted ordinances under the Hotel/Motel Tax 
under 65 ILCS 5/8-3-14 or to all areas within the jurisdiction of Carroll County, except it shall not 
apply within the jurisdiction of any municipality. 

745-2  Definitions 

The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this Ordinance, have the meanings 
shown: 

GUEST HOME/HOUSE – A single-family dwelling rented out on a transient basis for the purpose 
of providing guest accommodations to the public for a charge. 

GUEST – A guest is a person(s) who is paying for the use of lodging. 

TRANSIENT RESIDENT – Any person who occupies a Guest House/Home for less than thirty (30) 
consecutive days.  

LODGING - a transient living or sleeping place provided to a guest in exchange for payment. 

745-3  License and Registration Required 

A yearly license and registration are required of all owners seeking to use property for guest home 
lodging. No guest home shall be installed or maintained on a property without a valid and current 
license issued from the Carroll County Board (Board). All new license applications must be filed 
with the Zoning Department and approved by Board action. Renewal applications will not require 
Board action. Existing licenses must be renewed every year through the Zoning Department by 
March 31st to maintain the license renewal status. All applications shall include the following 
information, or other information as requested.  

A. Owner name and contact information. 
B. Property Site Address. 
C. A copy of the lodging listing, including all policies, quite hour requirements, ADA 

accessibility requirements, parking restrictions, facilities or amenities with restrictions 
thereto, a general description of the rental including the number of sleeping unites and 
bathrooms as well as a completed emergency plan with contact information. 

D. Proof of Liability Insurance. 
E. Documentation of approved well, water and septic infrastructure. An applicant seeking a 

guest home license must obtain approval from the Carroll County Health Department or 
other testing facility for the water, well and septic systems that will be used at the guest 



CHAPTER 745 

GUEST HOME LICENSE ORDINANCE 
home location. Inspections may be required. Documentation on file with the Carroll 
County Health Department may be used to satisfy these requirements. 

745-4  Inspection/Onsite Requirements 

An Owner of a guest home or their designated agent are required to show proof of compliance 
and/or submit to an inspection of the property. If an inspection is needed it will be scheduled for 
a convenient time with the owner or their agent as needed. The following list of onsite 
requirements are to be maintained at all times. Failure to maintain any of these requirements 
may constitute a violation of this Ordinance and subject to fine, suspension, revocation and/or 
disqualification.  

A. Prominently displayed or easily located working fire extinguisher. 
B. Smoke and Carbone Monoxide Alarms in common areas. 
C. Carroll County Guest Home License Document. 
D. Emergency Plan and Contact Information. 
E. All below grade sleeping areas must meet the Emergency Escape & Rescue Opening Code 

for below grade bedrooms. 

745-5  Hotel/Motel Tax 

For each license and location granted approval, the owner is required to file and pay applicable 
Hotel/Motel Tax established under Carroll County Ordinance Chapter 440, to the Carroll County 
Treasurer. 

745-6  Application Fees 

The cost to apply for a new license is $250 (two hundred and fifty dollars). License renewal and 
registration is available on a yearly schedule through the Zoning Department, ending March 31st 
of every year. The cost to renew an existing license is $100 (one hundred dollars). Failure to renew 
a license within the renewal period ending March 31st of every year will forfeit the application as 
a renewal and require a new license application.  

745-7  List of Active Licenses 

The Zoning Department shall keep a complete record of all active licenses and post the list on the 
County website. 

 

745-8  Neighbor Notification 

It shall be the responsibility of the Zoning Department to make notification by regular mail to all 
property owners of record, located within 250 feet of the property which the owner is applying 
to be a guest home. No such notification will be required for a license renewal. 

 



CHAPTER 745 

GUEST HOME LICENSE ORDINANCE 
745-9  No Change of Location 

No change of location shall be allowed for any license issued and each property will be required 
to have its own guest home license. 

745-10  Transition of Guest Home Special Use Permit to License 

Locations that have a current guest home special use will be allowed to use that permit for the 
remainder of the 5-year period that has been issued. Special use permits for guest homes will be 
provided the chance to continue as a renewal license application at the end of that renewal 
period. Locations that exceed or have exceeded their 5-year renewal period will be required to 
complete a new license application. All other requirements set forth herein will apply to guest 
home special use permits on the effective date of this ordinance. 

745-11  Fines, Violations and Severability 

A person who violates, disobeys, neglects or refuses to comply with the provisions of this 
Ordinance may be fined up to one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for each offense and each week 
of non-compliance. Ongoing or repetitive offenses and/or nuisance activities, including but not 
limited to: excessive late hour noise, unkept trash, improper parking, disorderly conduct or failure 
of an onsite requirement listed in Section #745-3 may constitute a violation. Upon evidence that 
a violation has been committed the Zoning Department will conduct the following: 

A. Notify the property owner of the violation, giving a reasonable time frame determined by 
the Zoning Department in which to pay a fine and/or take corrective action(s). 

B. The Zoning Department is authorized to serve upon any person in violation of this 
Ordinance a uniform non-traffic citation which shall require a fine and/or the violator’s 
appearance before the circuit court. 

C. The State’s Attorney may bring suit seeking to permanently enjoin any ongoing violation 
of this Ordinance that cannot otherwise be resolved. 

D. The county Board may act to suspend, revoke or disqualify a license and/or license holder 
after an attempt has been made to correct a violation and after notification of such action 
has been made to the license holder.  

745-12  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval by the Carroll County 
Board. 

 

AMMENDED THIS ______ day of ___July__, 2024._____________ County Board Chairman 

 

 

 



CHAPTER 745 

GUEST HOME LICENSE ORDINANCE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. This ordinance shall apply to all areas within the jurisdiction of Carroll County, except 
those municipalities that have enacted ordinances under the Hotel/Motel Tax under 65 
ILCS 5/8-3-14 

 

2. This ordinance shall apply to all areas within the jurisdiction of Carroll County, except it 
shall not apply within the jurisdiction of any municipality.  



1  

OPTIONAL COVER SHEET 
 
 

COUNTY OF   
 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   
 

 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING DEVELOPMENT IN FLOODPLAIN AREAS 
 

 
 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE 

(COUNTY BOARD) 

OF THE 
 

(COUNTY OF ) 
 

THIS  DAY OF  , 20  . 
 
 

 
 
 

PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF ILLINOIS, 

THIS  DAY OF  , 20 . 
 

 



2  

OPTIONAL PAGE 
ORDINANCE NO.   

 
AN ORDINANCE REGULATING DEVELOPMENT IN FLOODPLAIN AREAS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County of , pursuant to the police powers granted to 
 

by the County Statutory Authority in 55 ILCS 5/5-1041 and 5/5-1063, wishes to establish 

eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program and in order to do so must meet the 

requirements of 60.3 (a) of the National Flood Insurance Program Regulations; and 

WHEREAS, (County Board ) finds it to be in the best interest of the County to 
 

establish rules and regulations for floodplain management throughout the County and 

superseding any less restrictive municipal rules and regulations therein; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of  have 
 

previously adopted Ordinances No. *****, and *****. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Board of the County 

 
of , Illinois, the following measures shall be required within the 

 
corporate limits of the (Insert the community’s name): 



3  

FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ORDINANCE 

Counties with Mapped Floodways 60.3(d) 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 1. Purpose 
Section 2. Definitions 
Section 3. Base Flood Elevation 
Section 4. Duties of the Responsible Official 
Section 5. Development Permit 

Section 6. Preventing Increased Flood Heights and Resulting Damages 
Section 7. Protecting Buildings 

A. All Buildings 

B. Residential/Non-residential Buildings 
C. Non-Residential 
D. Manufactured Homes 
E. Travel Trailers and Recreational Vehicles 
F. Garages or Sheds and Other Accessory Structures 

Section 8. Subdivision Requirements 

Section 9. Public Health and Other Standards 
Section 10. Carrying Capacity and Notification 
Section 11. Variances 

Section 12. Disclaimer of Liability 
Section 13. Penalty 

Section 14. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions 
Section 15. Severability 
Section 16. Effective Date 



4  

60.3(d) for counties with detailed mapping, including mapped floodways and countywide 
maps 

Ordinance #  
 

 
AN ORDINANCE REGULATING DEVELOPMENT IN FLOODPLAIN AREAS 

Be it ordained by the County Board of the (County of ), Illinois as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose. 

This ordinance is enacted (Insert the following language if the Whereas section above is 
not used: pursuant to the police powers granted to this (*insert County name) by the 
County Statutory Authority in 55 ILCS 5/5-1041 and 5/5-1063. The purpose of this 
Ordinance is to maintain this County's eligibility in the National Flood Insurance 
Program; to minimize potential losses due to periodic flooding including loss of life, loss 
of property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental 
services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and 
impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and 
general welfare; and to preserve and enhance the quality of surface waters, conserve 
economic and natural values and provide for the wise utilization of water and related land 
resources. This Ordinance is adopted ) in order to accomplish the following purposes: 

A. To meet the requirements of 615 ILCS 5/18(g) Rivers, Lakes and Streams Act; 

B. To prevent unwise developments from increasing flood or drainage hazards to others; 
C. To protect new buildings and major improvements to buildings from flood damage; 
D. To protect human life and health from the hazards of flooding; 
E. To promote and protect the public health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens 

from the hazards of flooding; 
F. To lessen the burden on the taxpayer for flood control, repairs to public facilities and 

utilities, and flood rescue and relief operations; 
G. To maintain property values and a stable tax base by minimizing the potential for 

creating blight areas; 
H. To comply with the rules and regulations of the National Flood Insurance Program 

codified as 44 CFR 59-79, as amended; 
I. To make federally subsidized flood insurance available by fulfilling the requirements 

of the National Flood Insurance Program, and 
J. To preserve the natural characteristics and functions of watercourses and floodplains 

in order to moderate flood and stormwater impacts, improve water quality, reduce soil 
erosion, protect aquatic and riparian habitat, provide recreational opportunities, 
provide aesthetic benefits, and enhance community and economic development. 



5  

Section 2. Definitions. 

Unless specifically defines below, all words used in this ordinance shall have their 
common meanings. The word “shall” means the action is mandatory. 

For the purposes of this ordinance, the following definitions are adopted: 

Accessory Structure A non-habitable building, used only for parking of vehicles or 
storage, that is on the same parcel of property as the principal building and which is 
incidental to the use of the principal building. 

Agricultural Structure A walled and roofed structure used exclusively for agricultural 
purposes or uses in connection with the production, harvesting, storage, raising, or drying 
of agricultural commodities and livestock, including aquatic organisms. Structures that 
house tools or equipment used in connection with these purposes or uses are also 
considered to have agricultural purposes or uses. 

Base Flood The flood having a one percent (1%) probability of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. The base flood is often referred to as the 100-year flood. 
The base flood elevation at any location is as defined in Section 3 of this ordinance. 

Base Flood Elevation (BFE) The height in relation to the North American Vertical 
Datum (NAVD) of 1988 (or other datum, where specified) of the crest of the base flood. 

Basement Any portion of the building, including any sunken room or sunken portion of 
a room, having its floor below ground level (subgrade) on all sides. 

Building A walled and roofed structure, including gas or liquid storage tank, that is 
principally above ground including manufactured homes and prefabricated buildings. 
The term also includes recreational vehicles and travel trailers installed on a site for more 
than one hundred eighty (180) days per year. 

Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) A letter providing FEMA’s comment 
on a proposed project that would, upon construction, affect the hydrologic or hydraulic 
characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing 
Floodway, the effective BFEs, or the SFHA. 

Critical Facility Any facility which is critical to the health and welfare of the 
population and, if flooded, would create an added dimension to the disaster. Damage to 
these critical facilities can impact the delivery of vital services, can cause greater damage 
to other sectors of the community, or can put special populations at risk. 

Dam All obstructions, wall embankments or barriers, together with their abutments and 
appurtenant works, if any, constructed for the purpose of storing or diverting water or 
creating a pool. Dams may also include weirs, restrictive culverts, or impoundment 
Structures. Underground water storage tanks are not included. 



6  

Development Any man-made change to real estate including, but not necessarily limited 
to: 

1. demolition, construction, reconstruction, repair, placement of a building, or 
any structural alteration to a building; 

2. substantial improvement of an existing building; 
3. installation of a manufactured home on a site, preparing a site for a 

manufactured home, or installing a travel trailer on a site for more than one 
hundred eighty (180) days per year; 

4. installation of utilities, construction of roads, bridges, culverts or similar 
projects; 

5. redevelopment of a site, clearing of land as an adjunct of construction 
6. construction or erection of levees, dams, walls, or fences; 

7. drilling, mining, filling, dredging, grading, excavating, paving, or other 
alterations of the ground surface; 

8. storage of materials including the placement of gas and liquid storage tanks, 
and channel modifications or any other activity that might change the 
direction, height, or velocity of flood or surface waters. 

“Development” does not include resurfacing of pavement when there is no increase in 
elevation; construction of farm fencing; or gardening, plowing, and similar practices that 
do not involve filing, grading, or construction of levees. 

Elevation Certificate A form published by FEMA that is used to certify the elevation to 
which a Building has been constructed. 

Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision A manufactured home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
manufactured homes are to be affixed or buildings to be constructed (including, at a 
minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site 
grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community. 

Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision The preparation 
of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
manufactured homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the 
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency and its regulations at 44 CFR 59-79, as 
amended. 

Flood A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally 
dry land areas from overflow of inland or tidal waters, or from the unusual and rapid 
accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. Flood also includes the 
collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a result 
of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated 



7  

cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of 
water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as 
flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and unforeseeable 
event which results in a general and temporary condition of partial or complete 
inundation of normally dry land areas from the overflow of inland or tidal waters. 

Flood Fringe That portion of the floodplain outside of the regulatory floodway. 

Flood Insurance Rate Map A map prepared by the FEMA that depicts the floodplain or 
special flood hazard area (SFHA) within a community. This map includes insurance rate 
zones and may or may not depict floodways and show BFEs. 

Flood Insurance Study- An examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards 
and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations. 

Floodplain and Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) These two terms are 
synonymous. Those lands within the jurisdiction of the (Insert the community’s name), 
that are subject to inundation by the base flood. The floodplains of the (Insert the 
community’s name) are generally identified as such on panel number(s) ( Insert 
floodplain maps panel number(s)) of the countywide FIRM of (Insert the name of the 
county) prepared by the FEMA and dated (Insert countywide floodplain map effective 
date). Floodplain also includes those areas of known flooding as identified by the 
community. 

Floodproofing Any combination of structural or nonstructural additions, changes, or 
adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate, property 
and their contents. 

Floodproofing Certificate A form published by the FEMA that is used to certify that a 
building has been designed and constructed to be structurally dry flood proofed to the 
flood protection elevation. 

Flood Protection Elevation (FPE) The elevation of the base flood plus one foot (or you 
can choose a higher standard of two feet or three feet) of freeboard at any given location 
in the floodplain. 

Floodway That portion of the floodplain required to store and convey the base flood. 
The floodway for the floodplains of ( Insert any rivers or streams with identified 
floodways within the community) shall be as delineated on the countywide FIRM of 
(Insert the name of the county) prepared by FEMA and dated Insert the date of the 
Floodplain Map). The floodways for each of the remaining floodplains of the (Insert the 
community’s name) shall be according to the best data available from the Federal, State, 
or other sources. 

Freeboard An increment of elevation added to the BFE to provide a factor of safety for 
uncertainties in calculations, future watershed development, unknown localized 
conditions, wave actions and unpredictable effects such as those caused by ice or debris 
jams. 



8  

Historic Structure Any structure that is: 

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places or preliminarily 
determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for 
individual listing on the National Register. 

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as 
contributing to the historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the 
Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district. 

3. Individually listed on the state inventory of historic places by the Illinois 
Historic Preservation Agency. 

4. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places that has been 
certified by the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency. 

IDNR/OWR Illinois Department of Natural Resources/Office of Water Resources. 

IDNR /OWR Jurisdictional Stream IDNR/OWR has jurisdiction over any stream 
serving a tributary area of 640 acres or more in an urban area, or in the floodway of any 
stream serving a tributary area of 6,400 acres or more in a rural area. Construction on 
these streams requires a permit from the IDNR/OWR. (Ill Admin. Code tit. 17, pt. 
3700.30). The IDNR/OWR may grant approval for specific types of activities by 
issuance of a statewide permit which meets the standards defined in Section 6 of this 
ordinance. 

Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) Official determination by FEMA that a specific 
building, defined area of land, or a parcel of land, where there has not been any alteration of 
the topography since the date of the first NFIP map showing the property within the 
floodplain, was inadvertently included within the floodplain and that the building, defined 
area of land, or a parcel of land is removed from the floodplain. 

 
Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) Letter that revises BFEs, floodplains or floodways as 
shown on an effective FIRM. 

Lowest Floor the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An 
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building 
access, or storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s 
lowest floor. Provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in 
violation of the applicable non-elevation design requirements of Section 7 of this 
ordinance. 

Manufactured Home A building, transportable in one or more sections that is built on a 
permanent chassis and is designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation 
when connected to required utilities. 

Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land 
divided into two or more lots for rent or sale. 



9  

New Construction Structures for which the start of construction commenced or after the 
effective date of floodplain management regulations adopted by a community and 
includes any subsequent improvements of such structures. 

New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision A manufactured home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
manufactured homes are to be affixed or buildings to be constructed (including, at a 
minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site 
grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of the 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community. 

NFIP  National Flood Insurance Program. 

NAVD 88  North American Vertical Datum of 1988. NAVD 88 supersedes the National 
Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (NGVD). 

Recreational Vehicle or Travel Trailer A vehicle which is: 

1. built on a single chassis; 
2. four hundred (400) square feet or less in size, when measured at the largest 

horizontal projection; 
3. designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; 

and 
4. designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary 

living quarters for recreational, camping, travel or seasonal use. 
Repetitive Loss- Flood related damages sustained by a structure on two separate 
occasions during a ten-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such 
flood event on the average equals or exceeds twenty-five percent (25%) of the market 
value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

SFHA See definition of floodplain. 

Start of Construction Includes substantial improvement and means the date the 
building permit was issued. This, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition placement or other improvement, was within one 
hundred eighty (180) days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first 
placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab 
or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns or any work beyond the 
stage of excavation or placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. For a 
substantial improvement, actual start of construction means the first alteration of any 
wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building whether or not that alteration 
affects the external dimensions of the building. 

Structure (see “Building”) The results of a man-made change to the land constructed 
on or below the ground, including a building, as defined in Section 2, any addition to a 



10  

building; installing utilities, construction of roads or similar projects; construction or 
erection of levees, walls, fences, bridges or culverts. 

Substantial Damage Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the 
(cumulative) percentage of damage (pick either: “subsequent to the adoption of this 
ordinance ”, “during the life of the building” or “during a ten (10) year period”) equals or 
exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the market value of the structure before the damage 
occurred regardless of actual repair work performed. Volunteer labor and materials must 
be included in this determination. The term includes “Repetitive Loss Buildings” (see 
definition). 

Substantial Improvement Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or improvement 
of a structure taking place (pick either: “subsequent to the adoption of this ordinance”, 
“during the life of the building” or “during a ten (10) year period”) in which the 
(cumulative) percentage of improvements equals or exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the 
market value of the structure before the improvement or repair is started(, or increases the 
floor area by more than twenty percent (20%). 

“Substantial improvement” is considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall, 
ceiling, floor or other structural part of the building commences, whether or not that 
alteration affects the external dimensions of the structure. This term includes structures 
which have incurred repetitive loss or substantial damage, regardless of the actual repair 
work done. 

The term does not include: 

1. Any project for improvement of a structure to comply with existing state or 
local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which are solely necessary 
to assure safe living conditions, or 

2. any alteration of a structure listed on the National Register of Historic Places 
or the Illinois Register of Historic Places. 

Violation The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with this 
ordinance. 

Section 3. Base Flood Elevation. 

This ordinance’s protection standard is the base flood. The best available base flood data 
are listed below. Whenever a party disagrees with the best available data, the party shall 
finance the detailed engineering study needed to replace the existing data with better data 
and submit it to the FEMA and IDNR/OWR for approval prior to any development of the 
site. 

A. The BFE for the floodplains of (Insert name of all studied rivers, creeks and streams 
within the community) shall be as delineated on the base flood profiles in the 
countywide Flood Insurance Study of (Insert name of county) prepared by the FEMA 
and dated (date of Flood Insurance Study). 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b737ef02df8def6077f1e8dab8f34277&term_occur=999&term_src=Title%3A44%3AChapter%3AI%3ASubchapter%3AB%3APart%3A59%3ASubpart%3AA%3A59.1
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=a099dadedd4cae24d990a712e840ff1c&term_occur=999&term_src=Title%3A44%3AChapter%3AI%3ASubchapter%3AB%3APart%3A59%3ASubpart%3AA%3A59.1


11  

B. The BFE for each floodplain delineated as an “AH Zone” or AO Zone” shall be that 
elevation (or depth) delineated on the countywide FIRM of (Insert name of county). 

C. The BFE for each of the remaining floodplains delineated as an “A Zone” on the 
countywide FIRM of (Insert the name of the county) shall be according to the best 
data available from federal, state, or other sources. Should no other data exist, an 
engineering study must be financed by the applicant to determine BFEs. 

Section 4. Duties of the ( Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance). 

The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance) shall be responsible for 
the general administration of this ordinance and ensure that all development activities 
within the floodplains under the jurisdiction of the (Insert the community’s name) meet 
the requirements of this ordinance. Specifically, the (Insert title of local official 
responsible for this ordinance) shall: 

A. Check all new development sites to determine if they are in the floodplain using the 
criteria listed in Section 3, Base Flood Elevation or for critical facilities, using the 
0.2% annual chance flood elevation, if defined. 

B. Process development permits and any permit extensions in accordance with Section 5 
and ensure all development activities happen in a timely manner. 

C. Ensure that all development in a floodway (or a floodplain with no delineated 
floodway) meets the damage prevention requirements of Section 6. 

D. Ensure that the building protection requirements for all buildings subject to Section 7 
are met and maintain a record of the “as-built” elevation of the lowest floor (including 
basement), elevation certificate, or floodproofing certificate. 

E. Review Elevation Certificates for accuracy and require incomplete or deficient 
certificates to be corrected. 

F. Assure that all subdivisions and annexations meet the requirements of Section 8 and 
notify FEMA in writing whenever the corporate boundaries have been modified by 
annexation. 

G. Ensure that water supply and waste disposal systems meet the Public Health standards 
of Section 9. 

H. If a variance is requested, ensure that the requirements of Section 11 are met and 
maintain documentation of any variances granted. 

I. Inspect all development projects and take any and all penalty actions outlined in 
Section 13 as a necessary to ensure compliance with this ordinance. 

J. Ensure that applicants are aware of and obtain any and all other required local, state, 
and federal permits; including permits pertaining to IDNR/OWR floodway and dam 
safety rules, Clean Water Act, Public Water Supply, Endangered Species Act, Illinois 
Endangered and Species Protection Act. 

K. Notify IDNR/OWR and any neighboring communities prior to any alteration or 
relocation of a watercourse. 



12  

L. Provide information and assistance to citizens upon request about permit procedures 
and floodplain construction techniques. 

M. Cooperate with state and federal floodplain management agencies to coordinate base 
flood data and to improve the administration of this ordinance. 

N. Maintain for public inspection base flood data, floodplain maps, copies of state and 
federal permits, and any other documentation of compliance for development 
activities subject to this ordinance. 

O. Notify FEMA and IDNR/OWR of any proposed amendments to this ordinance. 
P. Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with this ordinance and make 

substantial damage determinations for structures within the floodplain. 
Q. Maintain the accuracy of floodplain maps including notifying IDNR/OWR and/or 

submitting information to FEMA within six months whenever a modification of the 
floodplain may change the BFE or result in a change to the floodplain map. 

R. Schedule an annual inspection of the floodplain and document the results of the 
inspection. 

S. Establish, procedures for administering and documenting determinations, as outlined 
below, of substantial improvement and substantial damage: 

1. Determine the market value or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of 
the market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the 
building before the start of construction of the proposed work. In the case of 
repair, the market value of the Building shall be the market value before the 
damage occurred and before any repairs are made. 

2. Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged 
building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements 
and repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building. 

3. Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial 
improvement or substantial damage. 

4. Notify property owner of all determinations and responsibilities for permitting 
and mitigation 

Section 5. Development Permit. 

A. Development permits 

1. No person, firm, corporation, or governmental body, not exempted by law, 
shall commence any development in the floodplain without first obtaining a 
development permit from the (Insert title of local official responsible for this 
ordinance). 

2. No person, firm, corporation, or governmental body shall commence any 
development of a critical facility on land below the 0.2% annual chance flood 
elevation without first obtaining a Development permit from the (Insert title of 
local official responsible for this ordinance). 



13  

3. The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance) shall only issue 
a permit for development activities, including new construction and 
substantial improvements, which meet the requirements of this ordinance. 

B. The application for development permit shall be accompanied by: 

1. A site plan or drawings, drawn to scale using NAVD 88, showing: 
a. property lines and dimensions, 
b. existing grade elevations, 
c. all changes in grade resulting from excavation or filling, 
d. description of the benchmark or source of survey elevation control 
d. sewage disposal facilities, 
e. water supply facilities, 

f. floodplain limits based on elevation or depth, as applicable; 
g. floodway limits, as applicable; 
h. the location and dimensions of all buildings and additions to buildings; 
i. the location and dimensions of all structures, including but not limited to 
fences, culverts, decks, gazebos, agricultural structures, and accessory 
structures; 
j. the elevation of the lowest floor (including basement) of all proposed 
buildings subject to the requirements of Section 7 of this ordinance. 

2. Cost of project or improvements, including all materials and labor, as 
estimated by a licensed engineer or architect. A signed estimate by a 
contractor may also meet this requirement. 

C. Upon receipt of an application for a development permit, the (Insert title of local 
official responsible for this ordinance) shall compare the elevation of the site to the 
BFE. 

1. Any development located on land that is shown by survey elevation to be 
below the current BFE is subject to the provisions of this ordinance. 

2. Any development located on land shown to be below the BFE and 
hydraulically connected to a flood source, but not identified as floodplain on 
the current FIRM, is subject to the provisions of this ordinance. 

3. Any development located on land that can be shown by survey data to be 
higher than the current BFE and which has not been filled after the date of the 
site’s first flood map showing the site in the floodplain, is not located in a 
mapped floodway, or located in a Zone A, is not in the floodplain and 
therefore not subject to the provisions of this ordinance. A LOMR-Floodway 
is required before developing land inadvertently included in a mapped 
floodway. Unless a LOMR is obtained, all ordinance provisions apply if the 
land is located in a Zone A. 



14  

4. Any development located on land that is above the current BFE but will be 
graded to an elevation below the BFE, is subject to the provisions of this 
ordinance. 

5. The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance) shall maintain 
documentation of the existing ground elevation at the development site and 
certification that this ground elevation existed prior to the date of the site’s 
first FIRM identification. 

6. The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance) shall be 
responsible for obtaining from the applicant copies of all other federal, state, 
and local permits, approvals or permit-not-required letters that may be 
required for this type of activity. The (Insert title of local official responsible 
for this ordinance) shall not issue a permit unless all other federal, state, and 
local permits have been obtained. 

D. Upon receipt of an application for a critical facility, the (Insert title of local official 
responsible for this ordinance) shall compare the elevation of the site to the 0.2% 
annual chance flood elevation, if available. Refer to Section 9. A. 5. for critical 
facility site requirements. 

E. A development permit or approval shall become invalid unless the actual Start of 
Construction, as defined, for work authorized by such permit, is commenced within 
180 days after its issuance, or if the work authorized is suspended or abandoned for a 
period of 180 days after the work commences. All permitted work shall be completed 
within ( Insert twelve (12) months, eighteen (18) months or a local permit expiration 
period) after the date of issuance of the permit or the permit shall expire. Time 
extensions, of not more than 180 days each, may be granted, in writing, by the (Insert 
title of local official responsible for this ordinance). Time extensions shall be granted 
only if the original permit is compliant with this ordinance and the FIRM and FIS in 
effect at the time the extension is granted. 

F. Certification and As-Built Documentation. The applicant is required to submit 
certification by a licensed professional engineer or registered land surveyor that the 
finished fill and building elevations were accomplished in compliance with Section 7 
of this ordinance. Floodproofing measures must be certified by a registered 
professional engineer or registered architect as being compliant with applicable 
floodproofing standards. Accessory structures designed in accordance with Section 7 
of this ordinance are exempt from certification, provided sufficient compliance with 
the development permit are documented. FEMA Elevation Certificate and 
Floodproofing Certificate forms (Choose “are” or “may be”) required as 
documentation of compliance. 

An as-built grading plan, prepared by a registered professional engineer (Choose “is” 
or “may be”) required to certify that any development in floodplain, such as grading 
or the construction of bridges or culverts, are in substantial conformance with the 
development permit. 



15  

No building, land or structure may be occupied or used in any manner until a letter or 
certificate has been issued by the (Insert title of local official responsible for this 
ordinance). stating that the use of the building or land conforms to the requirements 
of this ordinance. 

The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance). must maintain records 
in perpetuity documenting compliance with this ordinance, including the elevation to 
which structures and alterations to structures are constructed or floodproofed. 

G. Application Fees and Engineering Review Fee 

(This is optional language provided for your consideration. Check with your legal 
counsel if this fee may be charged. Also, if your community has an annual fee 
ordinance you would Insert language that refers to that ordinance in lieu of this 
language.) 

A non-refundable application fee of $ shall be paid to the (County Clerk). An 
additional fee may be charged if the (Insert title of local official responsible for this 
ordinance) requires the assistance of a professional engineer or other expert. The 
applicant will be contacted in writing before any outside review begins with the 
estimated engineering or expert review fee. The applicant must consent in writing 
before the outside review begins. The engineering review fee shall be paid in full by 
the applicant within 30 days after the applicant receives the bill. 

Section 6. Preventing Increased Flood Heights and Resulting Damages. 

Within any floodway identified on the countywide FIRM, and within all other floodplains 
where a floodway has not been delineated, the following standards shall apply: 

A.  Except as provided in Section 6 B. of this ordinance, no development shall be 
allowed which, acting in combination with existing and anticipated development will 
cause any increase in flood heights or velocities or threat to public health and safety. 
The following specific development activities shall be considered as meeting this 
requirement: 

1. Bridge and culvert crossings of streams in rural areas meeting the conditions 
of the IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 2. 

2. Barge fleeting facilities meeting the conditions of IDNR/OWR Statewide 
Permit Number 3. 

3. Aerial utility crossings meeting the conditions of IDNR/OWR Statewide 
Permit Number 4. 

4. Minor boat docks meeting the following conditions of IDNR/OWR Statewide 
Permit Number 5. 

5. Minor, non-obstructive activities such as underground utility lines, light poles, 
sign posts, driveways, athletic fields, patios, playground equipment, minor 
storage buildings not exceeding 70 square feet and raising buildings on the 



16  

same footprint which does not involve fill and any other activity meeting the 
conditions of IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 6. 

6. Outfall Structures and drainage ditch outlets meeting the following conditions 
of IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 7. 

7. Underground pipeline and utility crossings meeting the conditions of 
IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 8. 

8. Bank stabilization projects meeting the conditions of IDNR/OWR Statewide 
Permit Number 9. 

9. Accessory structures and additions to existing residential buildings meeting 
the conditions of IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 10. 

10. Minor maintenance dredging activities meeting the following conditions of 
IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 11. 

11. Bridge and culvert replacement structures and bridge widening meeting the 
following conditions of IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 12. 

12. Temporary construction activities meeting the following conditions of 
IDNR/OWR Statewide Permit Number 13. 

13. Any development determined by IDNR/OWR to be located entirely within a 
flood fringe area shall be exempt from state floodway permit requirements. 

B. Other development activities not listed in 6(A) may be permitted only if: 

1. permit has been issued for the work in an IDNR/OWR Jurisdictional Streams 
by IDNR/OWR (or written documentation is provided that an IDNR/OWR 
permit is not required), or 

2. sufficient data has been provided to FEMA when necessary, and approval 
obtained from FEMA for a revision of the regulatory map and BFE. 

Section 7. Protecting Buildings. 

A. In addition to the state permit and damage prevention requirements of Section 6 of 
this ordinance, all buildings located in the floodplain shall be protected from flood 
damage below the FPE. This building protection requirement applies to the following 
situations: 

1. Construction or placement of a new building or alteration or addition to an 
existing building. 

2. Value of improvements equals or exceeds the market value by fifty percent 
(50%) (For higher standards or may Insert “or structural alterations made to an 
existing building that increase the floor area by more than twenty percent 
(20%).” and “Improvements shall be figured cumulatively ( pick either: 
“subsequent to the adoption of this ordinance”, “during the life of the 
building” or “during a 10- year period”). If substantially improved, the 



17  

existing structure and the addition must meet the flood protection standards of 
this section. 

3. Repairs made to a substantially damaged building. (For higher standards or 
may Insert “These repairs shall be figured cumulatively ( pick either: 
“subsequent to the adoption of this ordinance, “during the life of the building” 
or “during a 10-year period”). If substantially damaged, the entire structure 
must meet the flood protection standards of this section within 24 months of 
the date the damage occurred. 

4. Installing a manufactured home on a new site or a new manufactured home on 
an existing site. (The following section can also be added, though it is not 
recommended and is not allowed for a CRS community: “The building 
protection requirements do not apply to returning a manufactured home to the 
same site it lawfully occupied before it was removed to avoid flood damage”). 

5. Installing a travel trailer or recreational vehicle on a site for more than one 
hundred eighty (180) days per year. 

6. Repetitive loss to an existing building as defined in Section 2. 

(Include 7. below if the community choses to allow homes with basements to be built in 
areas removed from the floodplain with a LOMR Based on Fill. This refers to section 9E 
which will outline a community’s responsibility for determining if the site is reasonably 
safe from flooding. Although the area of fill has been removed from the floodplain any 
building with a basement built on the fill may be subject to damage from subsurface 
flooding caused by seepage through the fill. 

7. Construction or placement of a new building or alteration or addition to an 
existing building with the low floor below BFE following a LOMR-F in 
accordance with the conditions outlined in Section 9. E. ) 

B. Residential or non-residential buildings can meet the building protection requirements 
by one of the following methods: 

1. The building may be constructed on permanent land fill with the lowest floor 
including basement at or above the FPE in accordance with the following 
conditions.: 

a. The lowest floor (including basement) shall be at or above the FPE. 
b. The fill shall be placed in layers no greater than six inches before 

compaction and should extend at least twenty (20) feet beyond the 
foundation before sloping below the FPE in lieu of a geotechnical report. 

c. The fill shall be protected against erosion and scour during flooding by 
vegetative cover, riprap, or other structural measure. 

d. The fill shall be composed of rock or soil and not incorporated debris or 
refuse material. 



18  

e. The fill shall not adversely affect the flow of surface drainage from or 
onto neighboring properties and when necessary stormwater management 
techniques, such as swales or basins, shall be incorporated. 

2. The building may be elevated on solid walls in accordance with the following: 

a. The building or improvements shall be elevated on stilts, piles, walls, 
crawlspace, or other foundation that is permanently open to flood waters. 

b. All components located below the FPE shall be constructed of materials 
resistant to flood damage. 

c. The lowest floor and all electrical, heating, ventilating, plumbing, and air 
conditioning equipment shall be located at or above the FPE. 

d. If walls are used, all enclosed areas below the FPE shall provide for 
equalization of hydrostatic pressures by allowing the automatic entry and 
exit of floodwaters. At least two (2) walls must have a minimum of one 
(1) permanent opening that is below the BFE and no more than one (1) 
foot above finished grade. The openings shall provide a total net area of 
not less than one (1) square inch for every one (1) square foot of enclosed 
area subject to flooding below the BFE, or the design must be certified by 
a Registered P.E, as providing the equivalent performance in accordance 
with accepted standards of practice. Refer to FEMA TB 1, Openings in 
Foundation Walls and Walls of Enclosures, for additional guidance. 

e. The foundation and supporting members shall be anchored, designed, and 
certified so as to minimize exposure to hydrodynamic forces such as 
current, waves, ice, and floating debris. 

i. Water and sewer pipes, electrical and telephone lines, 
submersible pumps, and other service facilities may be located 
below the FPE provided they are waterproofed. 

ii. The area below the FPE shall be used solely for parking or 
building access and not later modified or occupied as habitable 
space. 

iii. In lieu of the above criteria, the design methods to comply with 
these requirements may be certified by a licensed professional 
engineer or architect. 

3. The building may be constructed with a crawlspace located below the FPE 
provided that the following conditions and requirements of FEMA TB 11, 
Crawlspace Construction for Buildings Located in Special Flood Hazard 
Areas, which ever are more restrictive, are met: 

a. The building must be designed and adequately anchored to resist flotation, 
collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from 
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy. 



19  

b. All enclosed areas below the FPE shall provide for equalization of 
hydrostatic pressures by allowing the automatic entry and exit of 
floodwaters. A minimum of one (1) permanent opening shall be provided 
on at least two walls that is below the BFE and no more than one (1) foot 
above finished grade. The openings shall provide a total net area of not 
less than one (1) square inch for every one (1) square foot of enclosed area 
subject to flooding below the BFE, or the design must be certified by a 
Registered P.E. as providing the equivalent performance in accordance 
with accepted standards of practice. Refer to FEMA TB 1, Openings in 
Foundation Walls and Walls of Enclosures, for additional guidance. 

c. The interior height of the crawlspace measured from the interior grade of 
the crawl to the top of the foundations wall must not exceed four (4) feet 
at any point. 

d. An adequate drainage system must be installed to remove floodwaters 
from the interior area of the crawlspace within a reasonable period of time 
after a flood event. 

e. Portions of the building below the FPE must be constructed with materials 
resistant to flood damage, and 

f. Utility systems within the crawlspace must be elevated above the FPE. 
g. (This can be omitted to discourage allowing water to pond beneath the 

building and to be more restrictive: The interior grade of the crawlspace 
below the FPE must not be more than two (2) feet below the lowest 
adjacent exterior grade.) 

C. Non-residential buildings may be structurally dry floodproofed (in lieu of elevation) 
provided a licensed professional engineer or architect certifies that: 

1. Below the FPE the structure and attendant utility facilities are watertight and 
capable of resisting the effects of the base flood. 

2. The building design accounts for flood velocities, duration, rate of rise, 
hydrostatic and hydrodynamic forces, the effects of buoyancy, and the impact 
from debris and ice. 

3. Floodproofing measures will be incorporated into the building design and 
operable without human intervention and without an outside source of 
electricity. 

4. Levees, berms, floodwalls, and similar works are not considered 
floodproofing for the purpose of this subsection. 

D. Manufactured homes or travel trailers to be permanently installed on site shall be: 

1. Elevated to or above the FPE in accordance with Section 7. B, and 
2. anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement by being tied down 

in accordance with the rules and regulations for the Illinois Mobile Home Tie- 
Down Act issued pursuant to 77 Ill. Adm. Code § 870. 



20  

E. Travel trailers and recreational vehicles on site for more than one hundred eighty 
(180) days per year shall meet the elevation requirements of section 7. D unless the 
following conditions are met: 

1. The vehicle must be either self-propelled or towable by a light duty truck. 
2. The hitch must remain on the vehicle at all times. 
3. The vehicle must not be attached to external structures such as decks and 

porches 
4. The vehicle must be designed solely for recreation, camping, travel, or 

seasonal use rather than as a permanent dwelling. 
5. The vehicles having a total area not exceeding four hundred (400) square feet 

measured when measured at the largest horizontal projection. 
6. The vehicle’s wheels must remain on axles and inflated. 

7. Air conditioning units must be attached to the frame so as to be safe for 
movement of the floodplain. 

8. Propane tanks as well as electrical and sewage connections must be quick- 
disconnect. 

9. The vehicle must be licensed and titled as a recreational vehicle or park 
model, and must either: 

a. entirely be supported by jacks, or 
b. have a hitch jack permanently mounted, have the tires touching the 

ground and be supported by block in a manner that will allow the 
block to be easily removed by used of the hitch jack. 

F. Detached accessory structures may be permitted provided the following conditions 
are met: 

1. The structure must be non-habitable. 
2. The structure must be used only for the parking and storage and cannot be 

modified later into another use. 
3. The structure must be located outside of the floodway or have the appropriate 

state and/or federal permits. 
4. The exterior and interior building components and elements (i.e., foundation, 

wall framing, exterior and interior finishes, flooring, etc.) below the BFE, 
must be built with flood-resistant materials in accordance Section 7. 

5. All utilities, mechanical, and electrical must be elevated above the FPE. 

6. The structure must have at least one permanent opening on at least two walls 
not more than one (1) foot above grade with one (1) square inch of opening 
for every one (1) square foot of floor area. 

7. The structure must be no more than one story in height and no more than six 
hundred (600) square feet in size. 



21  

8. The structure shall be anchored to resist floatation, collapse, lateral 
movement. and overturning. 

9. All flammable or toxic materials (gasoline, paint, insecticides, fertilizers, etc.) 
shall be stored above the FPE. 

10. The lowest floor elevation should be documented and the owner advised of 
the flood insurance implications. 

Section 8. Subdivision Requirements 

The County Board shall take into account hazards, to the extent that they are known, in 
all official actions related to land management use and development. 

A. New subdivisions, manufactured home parks, annexation agreements, planned unit 
developments, and additions to manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall meet 
the damage prevention and building protections standards of Sections 6 and 7 of this 
ordinance. 

B. Streets, blocks lots, parks and other public grounds shall be located and laid out in 
such a manner as to preserve and utilize natural streams and channels. Wherever 
possible the floodplains should be included within parks, openspace parcels, or other 
public grounds. 

C. Any proposal for such development shall include the following data: 
1. The BFE and the boundary of the floodplain, where the BFE is not available 

from an existing study, the applicant shall be responsible for calculating the 
BFE. 

2. The boundary of the floodway, when applicable. 
3. A signed statement by a Licensed Professional Engineer that the proposed plat 

or plan accounts for changes in the drainage of surface waters in accordance 
with the Plat Act (765 ILCS 205/2). 

Section 9. Public Health and Other Standards 

A. Public health standards must be met for all floodplain development. In addition to the 
requirements of Sections 6 and 7 of this ordinance, the following standards apply: 

1. No development in the floodplain shall include locating or storing chemicals, 
explosives, buoyant materials, flammable liquids, pollutants, or other 
hazardous or toxic materials below the FPE unless such materials are stored in 
a floodproofed and anchored storage tank and certified by a professional 
engineer or floodproofed building constructed according to the requirements 
of Section 7 of this ordinance. 

2. Public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas and electric shall be located 
and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage. 



22  

3. Public sanitary sewer systems and water supply systems shall be located and 
constructed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the 
systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters. 

4. New and replacement on-site sanitary sewer lines or waste disposal systems 
shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination 
from them during flooding. Manholes or other above ground openings located 
below the FPE shall be watertight. 

5. Critical facilities, which are buildings, constructed or substantially improved 
within the floodplain or the 0.2 percent annual chance flood elevation when 
defined, shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated or 
structurally dry floodproofed to the 0.2 percent annual chance flood elevation or 
three feet above the BFE, whichever is greater. Adequate parking shall be 
provided for staffing of the critical facilities at or above the BFE or 0.2 
percent chance flood, when defined. Access routes to all critical facilities 
should be reviewed and considered when permitting. Access routes should be 
elevated to or above the level of the BFE . 
Floodproofing and sealing measures may also be used to provide protection, 
as described in Section 7, and must be taken to ensure that toxic substances 
will not be displaced by or released into floodwaters. 
Critical Facilities include emergency services facilities (such as fire and police 
stations), schools, hospitals, retirement homes, and senior care facilities. (A 
community may also chose to include one or more of the following: sewage 
treatment plants, water treatment plants, specific roads and bridges required 
for evacuation, critical utility sites (telephone switching stations or electrical 
transformers), and hazardous material storage facilities (chemicals, 
petrochemicals, hazardous or toxic substances) of a specified size or type.) 

B. All other activities defined as development shall be designed so as not to alter flood 
flows or increase potential flood damages. 

C. Dams are classified as to their size and their hazard/damage potential in the event of 
failure. Permits for dams may be required from IDNR/OWR. Contact IDNR/OWR to 
determine if a permit is required. If a permit is required, a permit application must be 
made to IDNR/OWR prior to the construction or major modification of jurisdictional 
dams. 

D. Letters of Map Revision. The (Insert title of local official responsible for this 
ordinance) shall require a CLOMR prior to issuance of a development permit for: 

1. Proposed floodway encroachments that will cause an increase in the BFE; and 

2. Proposed development which will increase the BFE by more than 0.1 feet in 
riverine area where FEMA has provided a BFE but no floodway. 

Once a CLOMR has been issued, the development permit may be issued for site 
grading and structures necessary in the area of the map change to achieve the final 



23  

LOMR. Upon completion, the applicant shall submit as-built certifications, as 
required by FEMA, to achieve a final LOMR prior to the release of final development 
permits. Review Section 9. E for the construction of buildings in any floodplain 
issued a LOMR Based on Fill. 

E. When construction of a building following a LOMR Based on Fill is requested, the 
condition where a site in the floodplain is removed due to the use of fill to elevate the 
site above the BFE, the applicant may not (or the community can chose to allow and 
Insert “may”, see Section 7. A. 7 above) apply for a permit from the County to 
construct the lowest floor of a building below the BFE in the floodplain. 

(If “may is chosen”, Insert the following: 

The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance) shall not issue such a 
permit unless the applicant has demonstrated that the building will be reasonable safe 
from flooding. The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance) shall 
require a professional certification from a qualified design professional that indicates 
the land or buildings are reasonably safe from flooding, according to the criteria 
established in FEMA TB 10. Professional certification may come from a professional 
engineer, professional geologist, professional soil scientist, or other design 
professional qualified to make such evaluations. 

The (Insert title of local official responsible for this ordinance) shall maintain records, 
available upon request by FEMA, all supporting analysis and documentation used to 
make that determination, including but not limited to, all correspondence, 
professional certification, existing and proposed grading, sump pump sizing, 
foundation plans, Elevation Certificates, soil testing and compaction data.) 

Section 10. Carrying Capacity and Notification. 

For all projects involving channel modification, fill, or stream maintenance (including 
levees), the flood carrying capacity of the watercourse shall be maintained. 

In addition, the County shall notify adjacent communities in writing thirty (30) days prior 
to the issuance of a permit for the alteration or relocation of the watercourse. 

Section 11. Variances. 

A. No variances shall be granted within a floodway if any increases in the base flood 
elevation would result. 

B. Whenever the standards of this ordinance place undue hardship on a specific 
development proposal, the applicant may apply to the ( Insert name of the elected or 
appointed board of appeals) for a variance. The ( Insert the name of the elected or 
appointed board of appeals) shall review the applicant’s request for a variance and 
shall submit its recommendation to the County Board. The County Board may attach 
such conditions to granting of a variance as it deems necessary to further the purposes 
and objectives of this ordinance. The County Board shall base the determination on: 



24  

1. Technical justifications submitted by the applicant. 
2. The staff report, comments, and recommendations submitted by the floodplain 

administrator. 
3. The limitations, considerations, and conditions set forth in this section. 

C. The findings of fact and conclusions of law made by the (Insert name of County 
board of review) according to Section 11. A, the notifications required by Section 11. 
B, and a record of hearings and evidence considered as justification for the issuance 
of all variances from this ordinance shall be maintained by the Insert City, Village) in 
perpetuity. 

D. No variance shall be granted unless the applicant demonstrates and the (Insert name of 
County Board of appeals) finds that all of the following conditions are met: 

1. The development activity cannot be located outside the floodplain. 

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional 
hardship by rendering the lot undevelopable. 

3. The variance granted is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, 
to afford relief. 

4. There will be no additional threat to public health, public safety, destruction of 
beneficial stream uses and functions including, aquatic habitat, causation of 
fraud on or victimization of the public, conflict with existing local laws or 
ordinances, or creation of a nuisance. 

5. There will be no additional public expense for flood protection, rescue or 
relief operations, policing, lost environmental stream uses and functions, 
repairs to streambeds and banks, or repairs to roads, utilities, or other public 
facilities. 

6. The circumstances of the property are unique and do not establish a pattern 
inconsistent with the intent of the NFIP. 

7. Good and sufficient cause has been shown that the unique characteristics of 
the size, configuration, or topography of the site renders the requirements of 
this ordinance inappropriate. 

8. All other state and federal permits have been obtained. 

E. The (Insert the name of the elected or appointed board of appeals) shall notify an 
applicant in writing that a variance from the requirements of the building protections 
standards of Section 7 that would lessen the degree of protection to a building will: 

1. Result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to twenty-five 
dollars ($25) per one hundred dollars ($100) of insurance coverage. 

2. Increase the risk to life and property. 
3. Require that the applicant proceed with knowledge of these risks and that the 

applicant acknowledge in writing the assumption of the risk and liability. 



25  

F. Considerations for Review. In reviewing applications for variances, all technical 
evaluations, all relevant factors, all other portions of these regulations, and the 
following shall be considered: 

1. The danger that materials and debris may be swept onto other lands resulting 
in further injury or damage. 

2. The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage. 
3. The susceptibility of the proposed development, including contents, to flood 

damage and the effect of such damage on current and future owners. 
4. The importance of the services provided by the proposed development to the 

community. 
5. The availability of alternate locations for the proposed development that are 

not subject to flooding or erosion. 
6. The compatibility of the proposed development with existing and anticipated 

development. 
7. The relationship of the proposed development to the comprehensive plan and 

floodplain management program for that area. 
8. The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and 

emergency vehicles. 
9. The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and debris and sediment 

transport of the floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, 
expected at the site. 

10. The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood 
conditions, including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities 
such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, streets, and bridges. 

 
G. Historic Structures. Variances issued for the reconstruction, repair, or alteration of a 

historic site or historic structure as defined in “Historic Structures”, may be granted 
using criteria more permissive than the requirements of Sections 6 and 7 of this 
ordinance subject to the conditions that: 

1. The repair or rehabilitation is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic 
character and design of the structure. 

2.  The repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure’s continued 
designation as a historic structure. 

H. Agriculture Structures. Variances issued for the construction or substantial 
improvement of agricultural structures which do not meet the non-residential building 
requirements of Sections 7. B and 7. C, provided the requirements of Section 11. A 
through 11. G and the following are satisfied: 

1. A determination that the proposed agricultural structure: 



26  

a. Is used exclusively in connection with the production, harvesting, storage, 
raising, or drying of agricultural commodities, or storage of tools or 
equipment used in connection with these purposes or uses, and will be 
restricted to such exclusive uses. 

b. Has low damage potential (amount of physical damage, contents damage, 
and loss of function). 

c. Does not increase risks and pose a danger to public health, safety, and 
welfare if flooded and contents are released, including but not limited to 
the effects of flooding on liquified natural gas terminals, and production 
and storage of highly volatile, toxic, or water-reactive materials. 

e.  Complies with the wet floodproofing construction requirements of Section 
H. 2. 

2. Wet floodproofing construction requirements. Wet floodproofed structures 
shall: 

a. The exterior and interior building components and elements (i.e., 
foundation, wall framing, exterior and interior finishes, flooring, etc.) 
below the BFE, must be built with flood-resistant materials in accordance 
with Section 7 of this ordinance. 

b. The building must be designed and adequately anchored to resist flotation, 
collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from 
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy. 

c. All enclosed areas below the FPE shall provide for equalization of 
hydrostatic pressures by allowing the automatic entry and exit of 
floodwaters. A minimum of one (1) permanent opening shall be provided 
on at least two walls that is below the BFE and no more than one (1) foot 
above finished grade. The openings shall provide a total net area of not 
less than one (1) square inch for every one (1) square foot of enclosed area 
subject to flooding below the BFE, or the design must be certified by a 
Registered P.E. as providing the equivalent performance in accordance 
with accepted standards of practice. Refer to FEMA TB 1, Openings in 
Foundation Walls and Walls of Enclosures, for additional guidance. 

d. Any mechanical, electrical, or other utility equipment must be located 
above the BFE or floodproofed so that they are contained within a 
watertight, floodproofed enclosure that is capable of resisting damage 
during flood conditions in accordance with Section 7 of this ordinance. 

e. If located in a floodway, must be issued a state floodway permit, and 
comply with Section 6 of this ordinance. 

f. The building may not be used for manure storage or livestock confinement 
operations. 



27  

Section 12. Disclaimer of Liability. 

The degree of protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for 
regulatory purposes and is based on available information derived from engineering and 
scientific methods of study. Larger floods may occur or flood heights may be increased 
by man-made or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply that development either 
inside or outside of the floodplain will be free from flooding or damage. This ordinance 
does not create liability on the part of the County of  or any officer or 
employee thereof for any flood damage that results from proper reliance on this 
ordinance, or any administrative decision made lawfully thereunder. 

Section 13. Penalty. 

Failure to obtain a permit for development in the floodplain or failure to comply with the 
conditions of a permit or a variance shall be deemed to be a violation of this ordinance. 
Upon due investigation, the ( Insert the title of the Official, Office or Agency, or State’s 
Attorney) may determine that a violation of the minimum standards of this ordinance 
exists. The (Insert the title of the Official, Office or Agency, or State’s Attorney) shall 
notify the owner in writing of such violation. 

A. If such owner fails after ten (10) days from the date the written notice is 
issued, to correct the violation: 

1. The County of  shall make application to the 
circuit court for an injunction requiring conformance with this 
ordinance or make such other order as the court deems necessary to 
secure compliance with the ordinance. 

2. Any person who violates this ordinance shall upon conviction 
thereof be fined not less than fifty dollars ($50) or more than seven 
hundred fifty ($750) for each offense. 

3. A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during 
or on which a violation occurs or continues, and 

4. the County of  shall record a notice of violation 
on the title of the property. 

B. The ( Insert the title of the Official, Office or Agency, or State’s Attorney) 
shall inform the owner that any such violation is considered a willful act to 
increase flood damages and therefore may cause coverage by a Standard 
Flood Insurance Policy to be suspended. 

The ( Insert the title of the Official, Office or Agency, or State’s Attorney) is 
authorized to issue an order requiring the suspension of the subject 
development. The stop-work order shall be in writing, indicate the reason for 
the issuance, and shall order the action, if necessary, to resolve the 
circumstances requiring the stop-work order. The stop-work order constitutes 
a suspension of the permit. 



28  

No site development permit shall be permanently suspended or revoked until a 
hearing is held by the (Insert the name of the elected or appointed board of 
appeals). Written notice of such hearing shall be served on the permittee and 
shall state the grounds for the complaint, reasons for suspension or revocation, 
and the time and place of the hearing. 

At such hearing the permittee shall be given an opportunity to present 
evidence on their behalf. At the conclusion of the hearing, the (Insert the 
name of the elected or appointed board of appeals) shall determine whether 
the permit shall be suspended or revoked. 

C. Nothing herein shall prevent the County of from taking 
such other lawful action to prevent or remedy any violations. All costs 
connected therewith shall accrue to the person or persons responsible. 

Section 14. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions. 

This ordinance repeals and replaces other ordinances adopted by the County Board to 
fulfill the requirements of the NFIP including: (Insert date of prior floodplain ordinance). 
However, this ordinance does not repeal the original resolution or ordinance adopted to 
achieve eligibility in the program. Nor does this ordinance repeal, abrogate, or impair 
any existing easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. Where this ordinance and other 
ordinance easements, covenants or deed restrictions conflict or overlap, whichever 
imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail. 

Section 15. Severability. 

The provisions and sections of this ordinance shall be deemed separable and the 
invalidity of any portion of this ordinance shall not affect the validity of the remainder. 

Section 16.  Effective Date. 

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, and 
publication as required by law. 

Passed by the County Board of the County of , Illinois, this ( Insert 
date) day of ( Insert month), 20( Insert year), the vote being taken by ayes and noes and 
entered upon the legislative records as follows: 

AYES: 
NOES: 

Attested and filed in my office this ( Insert date) day of ( Insert month), 20( Insert year). 

APPROVED: 
 
 

County Board Chair 



29  

ATTEST 
 
 

County Clerk 



















FUND 84 
STARTING BALANCE $2,778,579.00

EXP LINES NAME OF LINE AMOUNT SPENT
084-00-00-5555 EXPENSES $129,092.08
084-00-00-5556 COVID TESTING $12,085.88
084-00-00-5557 PREMIUM PAY $79,000.00
084-00-00-5558 TECHNOLOGY UPGRADE $148,993.25
084-00-00-5559 FIRE DEPT RADIOS $98,202.05
084-00-00-5560 VEHICLES $555,273.88
084-00-00-5561 HVAC $316,069.39
084-00-00-5562 MISC COVID EXP $43,287.10
084-00-00-9208 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS $758,274.07

TOTAL SPENT $2,140,277.70

REMAINING $638,301.30

Project ideas left
trucks 308,880.68$          
ema basement 248,000.00$          
so car 52,500.00$            
sro 81,000.00$            
trees 304.00$                  
radon 1,805.00$              
gutter 3,473.00$              
tasers 12,248.80$            
garage door 7,509.26$              
water lEak 8,000.00$              

PROJECT IDEA BALANCE 723,720.74$          

Fund 84 Interest
FY 2021 $291.66
FY 2022 $22,845.31
FY 2023 $64,183.44
FY 2024 THROUGH JUNE $20,556.25

INTEREST BALANCE $107,876.66

TOTALS 638,301.30$          
ADD 107,876.66$          

SUBTRACT 723,720.74$          
REMAINING INTEREST 22,457.22$            


	Agenda
	Minutes June 20th Board Meeting
	Minutes June 27th Board Meeting
	Bills Paid in Vacation
	Committee on Claims
	Hwy Dept. Monthly Report
	Transit Monthly Report
	BHRC Monthly Report
	Tri-County Opportunites Council Monthly Report
	Chapter 20 Board Procedure
	WIPFLI Audit Services Fees
	Timberlake Playhouse Raffle License Application
	Intergovernmental Detention Agreement with Kane County
	Circuit Clerk Semi-Annual Report
	Joint Funding Agreement  Section 20-00102-00-PV Ideal Road
	Matching Fund Resolution Section 20-00102-00-PV Ideal Road
	Letter of Support Army Depot Bridge Repair
	Public Agency Formal Contract with Law Excavating for Loran Road Culvert Replacement
	Chapter 745 Guest Home License
	New Floodplain Oridinance
	Fire Alarm Inspection and Maintenance Agreement
	Sheriff Dept Vehicle Purchases from Fund 84



